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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
SELECTED YEAR-END DATA:  2010   2009   2008 
   NET INCOME/(LOSS) $ 7,664  $ 7,126  $ (22,060) 
   NET INCOME/(LOSS) AVAILABLE         
     TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS  5,978   5,633   (22,060) 
   TOTAL ASSETS  1,505,425   1,512,353   1,385,425 
   TOTAL DEPOSITS  1,351,546   1,349,669   1,237,888 
   TOTAL INVESTMENT SECURITIES  415,353   361,943   225,274 
   TOTAL LOANS  932,497   983,537   1,052,982 
   TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  117,716   119,509   83,894 
         
   TRUST DEPARTMENT ASSETS UNDER         
     ADMINISTRATION (MARKET VALUE)  1,940,404   1,856,229   1,804,629 
         
PER COMMON SHARE:         
   EARNINGS/(LOSS)-BASIC $ 0.68  $ 0.64  $ (2.53) 
   EARNINGS/(LOSS)-DILUTED  0.68   0.64   (2.53) 
   BOOK VALUE  11.03   10.57   9.64 
         
FINANCIAL RATIOS:         
   NET INTEREST MARGIN  3.64 %  3.58 %  3.68 %
   RETURN ON AVERAGE ASSETS  0.52   0.49   (1.62) 
   RETURN ON AVERAGE COMMON EQUITY  6.26   6.26   (20.74) 
         
REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS:         
   TOTAL CAPITAL TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS  14.16 %  13.71 %  10.05 %
   TIER 1 CAPITAL TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS  12.91   12.45   9.11 
   TIER 1 CAPITAL TO AVERAGE ASSETS  7.96   7.93   6.15 
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS AND FRIENDS,
Most of us will remember 2010 as the year when we could feel some balance return to the markets 

and the economy.  There seems to be more confidence that the job you have now will still be there 
in the future.  Households dramatically increased their rate of savings.  This new cushion will create 
security and confidence.

At the same time, most households also began to reduce debt where possible.  That is called  
de-leveraging, and it takes time.  In many cases it will take several years to bring debt levels into 
balance with asset values.  Progress is being made.

Customers create free cash to save and reduce debt by reducing spending wherever possible.  This 
obviously affects businesses everywhere.  The correct response of business is to reduce expenses, cut 
inventory and thereby conserve their cash and reduce their debt where possible.

All of this is very important, because we believe 2010 was the year when businesses that bank 
with us made great strides to rebalance their finances to a point where they have confidence to look 
at opportunities the future will certainly bring.  We also believe that the strong recovery in the stock 
market has had a positive effect on the outlook of investors, especially those nearing retirement.

As we move ahead, the de-leveraging will certainly continue.  Consumer and corporate spending 
will find the level that the “new” economy will support.  That will be the new foundation from which 
we will all build upon.

How fast all this happens will determine when meaningful job growth returns.  This is a desperate 
time for the millions who are unemployed or underemployed.

There is no question that businesses will wait as long as possible to add jobs because of the multiple 
uncertainties created by government overregulation.  None of us should underestimate the effect this is 
having.  Examples are future healthcare costs, new taxes that are sure to come and multiple compliance 
requirements on everyday business transactions.  There is no clarity on these issues today and it is 
having a negative effect on the recovery.  The American people can deal with any situation as long as 
the challenge is clear.

EARNINGS

For the year ended December 31, 2010, PGC recorded net income of $7.7 million reflecting a 7.5 
percent increase when compared to $7.1 million for the 2009 year.  Diluted earnings per share grew 
from $0.64 for 2009 to $0.68 for 2010.

While these numbers are not where we need to be as we move forward, they do reflect great strength 
in our deposit mix, net interest margin, earnings from PGB Trust & Investments and efficiency ratios.  
In other words, we believe our core businesses are doing very well and we are positioned well to 
improve earnings as levels of provisioning for loan losses normalize.

ASSET QUALITY

At December 31, 2010, non-performing loans increased slightly to $18.8 million or 2.01 percent of 
loans.  These are very manageable levels and shareholders should know that Management believes all 
non-performing loans have been written down or reserved for at appropriate levels.

1921 201190 t h Anniversary 



4

We are encouraged that many non-performing assets are nearing resolution and believe we will 
see improvement during the course of 2011.  This economic downturn has been difficult for virtually 
everyone.  It is a slow process to work out non-performing assets to ensure maximum shareholder 
value is retained.  We are making very good progress and borrowers are stabilizing as is the economy.

CAPITAL

On December 31, 2010, the Corporation’s leverage ratio, Tier 1 and total risk-based capital ratios 
were 7.96 percent, 12.91 percent and 14.16 percent, respectively. All ratios are above the levels to be 
considered well capitalized and the ratios reflect the $7.2 million reduction in regulatory capital due to 
the partial redemption in January 2010 of the preferred shares previously issued in January 2009 under 
the Treasury’s Capital Purchase program (CPP).  

We are pleased to have been able to redeem in March 2011 an additional $7.2 million previously 
issued under the Treasury’s CPP.  When combining 2010’s $7.2 million redemption with this latest 
$7.2 million redemption, we have repaid half of the original CPP funds from internally generated 
capital, without diluting our existing shareholders.  Our plan has been, and is, to redeem the CPP 
investment over time, from internally generated capital.  We believe this strategy is in the best interests 
of the Corporation, as well as our shareholders.

PGB TRUST & INVESTMENTS

This economic environment has proven that it is vital to have a trusted advisor like PGB Trust & 
Investments.  A steady hand and valuable insights into financial markets has served our clients well.  
Volatility is stressful and it is vital to have long-term vision and goals to work toward.  We encourage 
you to contact Craig Spengeman or John Bonk to discuss how we can help you and your family.

During 2010, assets under administration grew to nearly $2 billion and gross fees grew to nearly 
$10 million.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS

There were many accomplishments during 2010.  Our administrative offices were relocated to 500 
Hills Drive in Bedminster.  The slow commercial real estate market enabled us to negotiate a very 
favorable, long-term lease and to fit up the space for an amount well below estimates.  The result is a 
more efficient home for our company and the opportunity to have almost everyone under one roof for 
the first time in over 15 years.

We also completed a comprehensive three-year strategic plan in 2010.  Looking inward and outward 
for opportunities in an environment such as this was very valuable and has energized us.

We originated more residential mortgages than ever before, over $150 million in 2010.  We kept the 
shorter-duration loans in the Bank’s portfolio and sold the longer-duration, fixed-rate loans producing 
substantial fee income, while mitigating interest rate risk.

PGB Trust & Investments migrated its system to a very robust SEI platform which will serve us and 
our clients well into the future.

We made important progress in adjusting our balance sheet to reduce interest rate risk and provide 
for liquidity when customers begin to borrow more as the economy improves.

During 2010 and early 2011, we redeemed 50 percent of the Treasury’s CPP investment in our 
Corporation.

The Bank was honored by the New Jersey Bankers Association with its Community Service Award 
for all the good work of our Officers and Employees in the Communities where we work and live.
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Electronic banking is important today and will likely change how we all bank in the future.  We 
have fabulous products to meet this demand including online and mobile phone banking.  Please talk to 
the manager in the branch nearest you to hear all the details.

CONCLUSIONS

2010 required hard work from everyone.  I want to thank our Employees, Officers and Directors for 
their efforts.  They were extraordinary.

I also want to thank our customers and shareholders for their continuing support and confidence.  
We could not do it without you.

2011 is our 90th Anniversary and we are very proud of our history and the important part you 
have allowed us to play in the communities we serve.  We look forward to continued improvement 
throughout the year.

Craig C. Spengeman Frank A. Kissel Robert M. Rogers 

President & CIO Chairman & CEO President & COO

PGB Trust & Investments
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW:  The following discussion and analysis is intended to provide information about the 
financial condition and results of operations of Peapack-Gladstone Financial Corporation and its 
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial 
statements and the related notes and supplemental financial information appearing elsewhere in this 
report.

Peapack-Gladstone Financial Corporation (the “Corporation”), formed in 1997, is the parent holding 
company for Peapack-Gladstone Bank (the “Bank”), formed in 1921, a commercial bank operating 23 
branches in Somerset, Hunterdon, Morris, Middlesex and Union counties.

The Corporation recorded increased earnings for 2010, but financial institutions and their borrowers 
are still working to recover from the effects of the recession. The Corporation recorded a slightly 
increased provision for loan losses in 2010, as the continued weakness in the overall economy and in 
the real estate markets continued to negatively impact borrowers and their property values. However, 
the Bank has not seen the same significant deterioration in the loan portfolio as many other institutions 
because of conservative underwriting at the time of origination and continued diligence in managing 
the loan portfolio. Management resolved several larger problem assets during 2010, as well as several 
in early 2011.

A planned change in the mix of deposits contributed to an increase in net interest income and net 
interest margin during 2010. The Corporation experienced deposit growth in its checking and money 
market products that was tempered with a planned decline in certificate of deposit balances. Loans 
decreased compared to the year-end 2009 balances, while the securities portfolio increased, as cash 
generated from deposit growth and loan prepayments was invested, primarily in shorter duration assets. 
Yields on interest-earning assets decreased 43 basis points, while yields on interest-bearing liabilities 
declined 59 basis points. 

As further discussed in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis section, some of the highlights 
in 2010 include:

•  Trust fee income and market value of PGB Trust & Investments assets under administration both 
increased approximately 5 percent.

•  Net interest income and net interest margin improved, due principally to an improved deposit 
mix and a reduced cost of funds.

• In January 2010, the Corporation repurchased approximately $7.2 million of the preferred 
stock sold to the U.S. Treasury in the Capital Purchase Program, representing 25 percent of the 
original amount sold. In March 2011, the Corporation repurchased an additional $7.2 million of 
the preferred stock.

Peapack-Gladstone Financial Corporation’s common stock trades on the National Association of 
Securities Dealers Automated Quotations (NASDAQ) Global Select Market under the symbol “PGC.”

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES:  Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation is based upon the Corporation’s consolidated 
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. The preparation of these financial statements requires the Corporation to make estimates 
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Note 1 to 
the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2010, 
contains a summary of the Corporation’s significant accounting policies.

Management believes that the Corporation’s policy with respect to the methodology for the 
determination of the allowance for loan losses involves a higher degree of complexity and requires 
Management to make difficult and subjective judgments, which often require assumptions or estimates 
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about highly uncertain matters. Changes in these judgments, assumption or estimates could materially 
impact results of operations. This critical policy and its application are periodically reviewed with the 
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

The provision for loan losses is based upon Management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the 
allowance, including an assessment of known and inherent risks in the portfolio, giving consideration 
to the size and composition of the loan portfolio, actual loan loss experience, level of delinquencies, 
detailed analysis of individual loans for which full collectability may not be assured, the existence 
and estimated fair value of any underlying collateral and guarantees securing the loans, and current 
economic and market conditions. Although Management uses the best information available, the level 
of the allowance for loan losses remains an estimate, which is subject to significant judgment and 
short-term change. Various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, peri-
odically review the Corporation’s provision for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Corporation 
to make additional provisions for loan losses based upon information available to them at the time of 
their examination. Furthermore, the majority of the Corporation’s loans are secured by real estate in the 
State of New Jersey. Accordingly, the collectability of a substantial portion of the carrying value of the 
Corporation’s loan portfolio is susceptible to changes in local market conditions and may be adversely 
affected should real estate values continue to decline or should New Jersey experience continuing 
adverse economic conditions. Future adjustments to the provision for loan losses may be necessary due 
to economic, operating, regulatory and other conditions beyond the Corporation’s control.

The Corporation accounts for its securities in accordance with “Accounting for Certain Investments 
in Debt and Equity Securities,” which was codified into ASC 320. Debt securities are classified as held 
to maturity and carried at amortized cost when Management has the positive intent and ability to hold 
them to maturity. Debt securities are classified as available for sale when they might be sold before 
maturity due to changes in interest rates, prepayment risk, liquidity or other factors. Equity securities 
with readily determinable fair values are classified as available for sale. Securities available for sale are 
carried at fair value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income, 
net of tax. 

For declines in the fair value of securities below their cost that are other-than-temporary, the amount 
of impairment is split into two components – other-than-temporary impairment related to other factors, 
which is recognized in other comprehensive income and other-than-temporary impairment related 
to credit loss, which must be recognized in the income statement. The credit loss is defined as the 
difference between the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized 
cost basis. In estimating other-than-temporary losses on a quarterly basis, Management considers the 
length of time and extent that fair value has been less than cost; the financial condition and near-term 
prospects of the issuer; and whether the Corporation has the intent to sell these securities or it is likely 
that it will be required to sell the securities before their anticipated recovery.

Securities are evaluated on at least a quarterly basis to determine whether a decline in their values 
is other-than-temporary. To determine whether a loss in value is other-than-temporary, Management 
utilizes criteria such as the reasons underlying the decline, the magnitude and the duration of the 
decline and the intent and ability of the Corporation to retain its investment in the security for a period 
of time sufficient to allow for an anticipated recovery in the fair value. “Other-than-temporary” is 
not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates that the prospects for a near-term 
recovery of value is not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support a realizable 
value equal to or greater than the carrying value of the investment. Once a decline in value is deter-
mined to be other-than-temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to 
earnings or comprehensive income is recognized. The Corporation recognized impairment charges of 
$360 thousand on several equity securities in its portfolio as well as $581 thousand on several trust 
preferred pooled securities. No impairment charges were recognized in 2009.
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EARNINGS SUMMARY: For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Corporation recorded net 
income of $7.7 million and diluted earnings per share, after the effect of the preferred dividend, of 
$0.68 as compared to net income of $7.1 million and diluted earnings per share, after the effect of 
the preferred dividend, of $0.64 for the year ended December 31, 2009. Per share results have been 
adjusted for the five percent stock dividend declared in June 2009.

These results produced a return on average assets of 0.52 percent and 0.49 percent in 2010 and 
2009, respectively, and a return on average common shareholders’ equity of 6.26 percent in both 2010 
and 2009.

When compared to the 2009 period, the 2010 period included increased net interest income and 
trust fee income, partially offset by increased provision for loan losses, problem loan expense and 
occupancy expense.

NET INTEREST INCOME: Net interest income is the primary source of the Corporation’s operating 
income. Net interest income is the difference between interest and dividends earned on earning assets 
and fees earned on loans, and interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Earning assets include loans 
to individuals and businesses, investment securities, interest-earning deposits and federal funds sold. 
Interest-bearing liabilities include interest-bearing checking, savings and time deposits, Federal Home 
Loan Bank advances and other borrowings. Net interest income is determined by the difference between 
the yields earned on earning assets and the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities (“Net Interest 
Spread”) and the relative amounts of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The Corporation’s 
net interest spread is affected by regulatory, economic and competitive factors that influence interest 
rates, loan demand and deposit flows and general levels of non-performing assets.

In 2010, net interest income, on a fully tax-equivalent basis, rose 2 percent to $50.6 million from 
$49.4 million in 2009. The Corporation’s net interest margin for 2010 was 3.64 percent, increasing six 
basis points from 3.58 percent in 2009. 

Interest income on earning assets, on a fully tax-equivalent basis, declined $5.4 million to $61.6 
million for 2010 as compared to 2009. Interest income declined from 2009 due to the lower rates 
earned on earning assets. Average earning assets for the year ended December 31, 2010 totaled $1.39 
billion, an increase of $10.2 million or less than 1 percent from the average 
balance in 2009, while the average rate earned on earning assets was 4.44 
percent in 2010, a decline of 43 basis points from the average rate earned 
in 2009. The decline in the average rate on earning assets was due to the 
sustained low market rates in 2010 coupled with growth in lower-yielding, 
but less risky and shorter duration investment securities and interest-earning 
deposits. In 2010, average investment securities totaled $364.6 million, an 
increase of $67.4 million compared to 2009 and the average yield was 3.00 
percent for 2010. Average investments in interest-earning deposits increased 
$5.8 million to $64.2 million for 2010 when compared to 2009 and the 
average yield was 0.23 percent for 2010. 

During 2010, the average yield on total loans decreased 12 basis points 
to 5.27 percent from the 5.39 percent average yield earned in 2009. The 
average yield on the mortgage portfolio declined in 2010 to 4.87 percent 
from 5.12 percent in 2009. During 2010, the average yield on the commercial 
mortgage loan portfolio declined 15 basis points to 6.12 percent, while the 
average yield on commercial loans increased 23 basis points to 5.82 percent. 
Because the rate on commercial construction loans was the most dependent 
on LIBOR, which remained at low levels during 2010, the average yield on 
this portfolio was 3.99 percent, decreasing 29 basis points from 2009. The 
average yield on home equity lines increased 12 basis points to 3.21 percent 
in 2010 from 3.09 percent in 2009. Many rates declined during the year due 
to lower market rates and competitive pressure experienced during 2010.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010, average interest-bearing liabilities totaled $1.15 billion, 
reflecting an increase of $9.5 million or 1 percent from the average balance in 2009, while the average 
rate paid declined to 0.96 percent for 2010 from 1.55 percent for 2009. The decline in the average rate 
on interest-bearing liabilities was due to the sustained low in market rates in 2010 coupled with targeted 
growth of lower-costing core deposits and planned run-off of higher-paying certificates of deposit.

Average money market accounts rose $82.3 million, or 19 percent, from 2009 to $510.3 million 
during 2010, while average interest-bearing checking accounts rose $57.6 million or 29 percent over 
the comparable period in 2009. Checking account growth is due to the Corporation’s focus on core 
deposit growth. Additionally, the Corporation’s high yield money market product continues to be a 
popular vehicle for customers looking for a safe, interest-bearing account to hold their funds in this 
continuing lower interest rate environment. The Corporation’s Ultimate Checking product, which was 
introduced late in 2008, increased over $36.9 million in 2010 from 2009 due to continuing sales initia-
tives and a higher rate than other checking products offered. Average certificates of deposit declined 
$131.2 million, or 33 percent, because the Corporation opted not to pay higher rates on maturing certif-
icates of deposit.  Rates declined 90 basis points from the 2009 year to the 2010 year.  

Interest expense on borrowings declined as the average balance of borrowings declined during 
2010. Average borrowings declined $9.0 million during 2010 to $29.6 million as the result of principal 
repayments and maturities on Federal Home Loan Bank advances and average rates paid on borrowings 
was 3.54 percent.
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE COMPARES THE AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS, NET INTEREST SPREADS AND NET INTEREST MARGINS FOR  
THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008 (FULLY TAX-EQUIVALENT-FTE): 
 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
    INCOME/ 
  AVERAGE  EXPENSE YIELD

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT YIELD INFORMATION)  BALANCE  (FTE) (FTE)
ASSETS:     
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:     
INVESTMENTS:     
        TAXABLE (1) $ 329,605 $ 9,315 2.83 %
        TAX-EXEMPT(1)(2)  34,985  1,607 4.59
   LOANS (2)(3)  958,472  50,529 5.27
   FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD  174  1 0.23
   INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS  64,182  149 0.23
      TOTAL INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS  1,387,418 $ 61,601 4.44 %
NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:     
   CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS  8,567   
   ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  (14,070)   
   PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  31,826   
   OTHER ASSETS  69,309   
     TOTAL NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS  95,632   
     TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,483,050   
 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:     
INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS:     
   CHECKING $ 258,995 $ 1,586 0.61 %
   MONEY MARKETS  510,331  3,619 0.71
   SAVINGS  77,023  289 0.38
   CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT  266,134  4,286 1.61
       TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS  1,112,483  9,780 0.88
   BORROWED FUNDS  29,552  1,046 3.54
   CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION  3,637  206 5.64
       TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES  1,145,672  11,032 0.96 %
NONINTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES:     
   DEMAND DEPOSITS  214,753   
   ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES  6,490   
      TOTAL NONINTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES  221,243   
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  116,135   
     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 1,483,050   
       NET INTEREST INCOME   $ 50,569 
       NET INTEREST SPREAD     3.48 %
       NET INTEREST MARGIN (4)     3.64 %

1.  AVERAGE BALANCE FOR AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES ARE BASED ON AMORTIZED COST.

2.  INTEREST INCOME IS PRESENTED ON A TAX-EQUIVALENT BASIS USING A 35 PERCENT FEDERAL TAX RATE.

3.  LOANS ARE STATED NET OF UNEARNED INCOME AND INCLUDE NON-ACCRUAL LOANS.

4.  NET INTEREST INCOME ON A TAX-EQUIVALENT BASIS AS A PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL AVERAGE INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS.
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE COMPARES THE AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS, NET INTEREST SPREADS AND NET INTEREST MARGINS FOR  
THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008 (FULLY TAX-EQUIVALENT-FTE): 
 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
    INCOME/ 
  AVERAGE  EXPENSE YIELD

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT YIELD INFORMATION)  BALANCE  (FTE) (FTE)
ASSETS:     
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:     
INVESTMENTS:     
        TAXABLE (1) $ 329,605 $ 9,315 2.83 %
        TAX-EXEMPT(1)(2)  34,985  1,607 4.59
   LOANS (2)(3)  958,472  50,529 5.27
   FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD  174  1 0.23
   INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS  64,182  149 0.23
      TOTAL INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS  1,387,418 $ 61,601 4.44 %
NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS:     
   CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS  8,567   
   ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  (14,070)   
   PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  31,826   
   OTHER ASSETS  69,309   
     TOTAL NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS  95,632   
     TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,483,050   
 
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:     
INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS:     
   CHECKING $ 258,995 $ 1,586 0.61 %
   MONEY MARKETS  510,331  3,619 0.71
   SAVINGS  77,023  289 0.38
   CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT  266,134  4,286 1.61
       TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS  1,112,483  9,780 0.88
   BORROWED FUNDS  29,552  1,046 3.54
   CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION  3,637  206 5.64
       TOTAL INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES  1,145,672  11,032 0.96 %
NONINTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES:     
   DEMAND DEPOSITS  214,753   
   ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES  6,490   
      TOTAL NONINTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES  221,243   
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  116,135   
     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 1,483,050   
       NET INTEREST INCOME   $ 50,569 
       NET INTEREST SPREAD     3.48 %
       NET INTEREST MARGIN (4)     3.64 %

1.  AVERAGE BALANCE FOR AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES ARE BASED ON AMORTIZED COST.

2.  INTEREST INCOME IS PRESENTED ON A TAX-EQUIVALENT BASIS USING A 35 PERCENT FEDERAL TAX RATE.

3.  LOANS ARE STATED NET OF UNEARNED INCOME AND INCLUDE NON-ACCRUAL LOANS.

4.  NET INTEREST INCOME ON A TAX-EQUIVALENT BASIS AS A PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL AVERAGE INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS.

  YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
    INCOME/ 
  AVERAGE  EXPENSE YIELD

  BALANCE  (FTE) (FTE)
 
 
 
 $ 247,500 $ 9,395 3.80 %
  49,652  2,474 4.98
  1,021,457  55,059 5.39
  201  - 0.20
  58,364  90 0.15
  1,377,174 $ 67,018 4.87 %
     
  7,958   
  (10,879)   
  27,361   
  57,802   
  82,242   
 $ 1,459,416   
     
     

 $ 201,399 $ 1,476 0.73 %
  428,063  4,510 1.05
  70,850  320 0.45
  397,329  9,985 2.51
  1,097,641  16,291 1.48
  38,507  1,368 3.55
  -  - -  
  1,136,148  17,659 1.55 %
     
  199,543  
  7,144   
  206,687   
  116,581   
 $ 1,459,416   
   $ 49,359 
     3.32 %
     3.58 %

 YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
    INCOME/ 
  AVERAGE  EXPENSE YIELD

  BALANCE  (FTE) (FTE)
    
    
    
 $ 217,432 $ 11,061 5.09 %
  50,928  2,860 5.62
  1,010,007  58,867 5.83
  3,752  116 3.09
  6,310  136 2.14
  1,288,429 $ 73,040 5.67 %
    
  20,823   
  (8,164)   
  26,579   
  33,708   
  72,946   
 $ 1,361,375   
    
   
  
 $ 144,070 $ 1,096 0.76 %
  392,795  8,104 2.06
  66,071  400 0.61
  392,589  14,326 3.65
  995,525  23,926 2.40
  56,214  1,671 2.97
  -  - -
  1,051,739  25,597 2.43 %

     
   192,578   
  10,674   
  203,252   
  106,384   
 $ 1,361,375   
   $ 47,443 
     3.24 %
     3.68 %
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RATE/VOLUME ANALYSIS:  

THE EFFECT OF VOLUME AND RATE CHANGES ON NET INTEREST INCOME (ON A TAX-EQUIVALENT BASIS) FOR THE PERIODS INDICATED ARE SHOWN 
BELOW:
 YEAR ENDED 2010 COMPARED WITH 2009 YEAR ENDED 2009 COMPARED WITH 2008
 NET NET

 DIFFERENCE DUE TO CHANGE IN DIFFERENCE DUE TO CHANGE IN 
 CHANGE IN: INCOME/ CHANGE IN: INCOME/
(IN THOUSANDS): VOLUME RATE EXPENSE VOLUME RATE EXPENSE

ASSETS:         
INVESTMENTS $ 1,053 $ (2,000) $ (947)  $ (299) $ (1,753) $ (2,052)
LOANS  (3,040)  (1,490)  (4,530)   521  (4,329)  (3,808)
FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD  1  -  1   (59)  (57)  (116)
INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS  9  50  59   185  (231)  (46)
   TOTAL INTEREST INCOME $ (1,977) $ (3,440) $ (5,417)  $ 348 $ (6,370) $ (6,022)

LIABILITIES:            
CHECKING $ 484 $ (375) $ 109  $ 713 $ (333) $ 380
MONEY MARKET  798  (1,689)  (891)   742  (4,336)  (3,594)
SAVINGS  28  (58)  (30)   28  (108)  (80)
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT  (2,733)  (2,966)  (5,699)   171  (4,512)  (4,341)
BORROWED FUNDS  (302)  (20)  (322)   (216)  (87)  (303)
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION  206  -  206   -  -  -
   TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE $ (1,519) $ (5,108) $ (6,627)  $ 1,438 $ (9,376) $ (7,938)
NET INTEREST INCOME $ (458) $ 1,668 $ 1,210  $ (1,090) $ 3,006 $ 1,916

LOANS:  The loan portfolio represents the largest portion of the Corporation’s earning assets and is an important 
source of interest and fee income. Loans are primarily originated in the State of New Jersey.

At December 31, 2010, total loans were $932.5 million as compared to $983.5 million at December 31, 
2009, a decline of $51.0 million or 5 percent. During most of 2010, the Corporation experienced reduced 
loan demand from quality borrowers compared to 2009 due to the economic environment. Residential 
mortgage loans declined $33.0 million, or 7 percent, from 2009 to $419.7 million in 2010. The decrease was 
a result of loan prepayments that outpaced originations coupled with the sale of the Corporation’s longer-
term, fixed-rate mortgage loans at origination. This type of loan has become more popular with customers 
in the current low-rate environment and these mortgages have been sold rather than retained in portfolio for 
interest rate risk management purposes. In 2010, commercial mortgages increased $8.6 million or 3 percent to 
$288.2 million and commercial loans rose $10.9 million or 9 percent to $131.4 million due to increased loan 
demand from quality borrowers. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, construction loans totaled $25.4 million 
and $64.8 million, respectively, declining $39.4 million or 61 percent as the Bank has decided to decrease 
its exposure in construction lending. Home equity lines of credit increased $7.0 million or 18 percent and 
consumer loans declined $5.0 million or 20 percent due to an increased demand for floating-rate home equity 
lines and decreased demand for fixed-rate home equity loans, respectively. The Corporation also increased its 
marketing efforts for the home equity line product during 2010.
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS AN ANALYSIS OF OUTSTANDING LOANS, NET OF UNAMORTIZED DISCOUNTS AND DEFERRED LOAN 
ORIGINATION COSTS, AS OF DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008  2007  2006
RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 419,653 $ 452,641 $ 505,150 $ 497,016 $ 498,079
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  288,183  279,595  274,640  237,316  165,652
COMMERCIAL LOANS  131,408  120,554  143,188  129,747  107,357
COMMERCIAL-CONSTRUCTION  25,367  64,816  66,785  60,589  44,764
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  45,775  38,728  31,054  18,430  16,047
CONSUMER LOANS  20,622  25,638  29,789  37,264  35,836
OTHER LOANS  1,489  1,565  2,376  818  2,418
  TOTAL LOANS $ 932,497 $ 983,537 $ 1,052,982 $ 981,180 $ 870,153

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE CONTRACTUAL REPAYMENTS OF THE LOAN PORTFOLIO AT DECEMBER 31, 2010:
  WITHIN  AFTER 1 BUT  AFTER   
(IN THOUSANDS)  ONE YEAR  WITHIN 5 YEARS  5 YEARS  TOTAL

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 148,858 $ 197,277 $ 73,518 $ 419,653
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  56,423  209,671  22,089  288,183
COMMERCIAL LOANS  60,818  59,109  11,481  131,408
COMMERCIAL-CONSTRUCTION  25,367  -  -  25,367
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  45,775  -  -  45,775
CONSUMER LOANS  6,918  9,986  3,718  20,622
OTHER LOANS  1,489  -  -  1,489
  TOTAL LOANS $ 345,648 $ 476,043 $ 110,806 $ 932,497

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE LOANS THAT HAVE A PREDETERMINED INTEREST RATE AND AN ADJUSTABLE INTEREST RATE DUE 
AFTER ONE YEAR AT DECEMBER 31, 2010:
  PREDETERMINED  ADJUSTABLE 
(IN THOUSANDS)  INTEREST RATE  INTEREST RATE

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 140,291 $ 111,715
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  15,425  286,895
COMMERCIAL LOANS  6,661  7,640
CONSUMER LOANS  18,222  -
  TOTAL LOANS $ 180,599 $ 406,250

The Corporation has not made nor invested in subprime loans or “Alt-A” type mortgages. At 
December 31, 2010, there were no commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers whose loans are 
classified as non-performing.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY:  Investment securities are those securities 
that the Corporation has both the ability and intent to hold to maturity. These securities are carried at 
amortized cost. The Corporation’s investment securities held to maturity at amortized cost amounted 
to $140.3 million at December 31, 2010, compared with $89.5 million at December 31, 2009.
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THE CARRYING VALUE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 
2008 ARE SHOWN BELOW:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
U.S. TREASURY AND U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED ENTITIES $ 45,485 $ 16,200 $ 500
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES-RESIDENTIAL  67,745  42,538  10,007
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS  17,671  20,646  29,670
TRUST PREFERRED POOLED SECURITIES  9,376  10,075  11,554
   TOTAL $ 140,277 $ 89,459 $ 51,731

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES AND YIELDS OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY AT 
AMORTIZED COST, AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010:
  AFTER 1 AFTER 5  
  BUT BUT AFTER 
 WITHIN WITHIN WITHIN 10 
(IN THOUSANDS) 1 YEAR 5 YEARS 10 YEARS YEARS TOTAL

U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED ENTITIES $ - $ - $ 23,816 $ 21,669 $ 45,485
 -% -% 1.01% 1.51% 1.25%
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES-RESIDENTIAL (1) $ - $ 3,445 $ 34,774 $ 29,526 $ 67,745
   -% 1.47% 2.93% 2.76% 2.78%
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS (2) $ 13,193 $ 4,478 $ - $ - $ 17,671 
 2.23% 5.51% -% -% 3.06%
TRUST PREFERRED POOLED SECURITIES (1) $ - $ - $ - $ 9,376 $ 9,376 
 -% -% -% 2.18% 2.18%
   TOTAL $ 13,193 $ 7,923 $ 58,590 $ 60,571 $ 140,277 
 2.23% 3.75% 2.15% 2.22% 2.23%

(1) SHOWN USING STATED FINAL MATURITY.

(2) YIELDS PRESENTED ON A FULLY TAX-EQUIVALENT BASIS.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE: Investment securities available for sale are 
used as a part of the Corporation’s liquidity and interest rate risk management strategies, and they may 
be sold in response to changes in interest rates, liquidity needs, and/or other factors. These securities 
are carried at estimated fair value, and unrealized changes in fair value are recognized as a separate 
component of shareholders’ equity, net of income taxes. Realized gains and losses are recognized in 
income at the time the securities are sold.

At December 31, 2010, the Corporation had investment securities available for sale with a fair value 
of $275.1 million, compared with $272.5 million at December 31, 2009. A $1.5 million net unrealized 
gain (net of income tax) and a $1.6 million net unrealized gain (net of income tax) was included in 
shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.
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THE CARRYING VALUE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 
2008 ARE SHOWN BELOW:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
U.S. TREASURY AND U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED ENTITIES $ 51,135 $ 129,984 $ -
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES-RESIDENTIAL  202,090  117,464  146,075
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS  16,613  19,073  20,992
OTHER SECURITIES  3,001  3,046  3,110
CRA INVESTMENT FUND  1,499  -  -
MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES  738  2,917  3,366
   TOTAL $ 275,076 $ 272,484 $ 173,543

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE CONTRACTUAL MATURITIES AND YIELDS OF DEBT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE, STATED AT 
FAIR VALUE, AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010:
  AFTER 1 AFTER 5  
  BUT BUT AFTER 
 WITHIN WITHIN WITHIN 10 
(IN THOUSANDS) 1 YEAR 5 YEARS 10 YEARS YEARS TOTAL

U.S. TREASURY AND U.S. GOVERNMENT- $ - $ 50,151 $ - $ 984 $ 51,135 
   SPONSORED ENTITIES -% 1.75% -% 4.51% 1.80%
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL (1) $ - $ 7,604 $ 77,476 $ 117,010 $ 202,090
    -% 4.40% 2.89% 3.36% 3.22%
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS (2) $ 1,377 $ 831 $ 4,445 $ 9,960 $ 16,613 
 6.23% 6.90% 5.62% 3.18% 4.25%
OTHER SECURITIES $ - $ - $ - $ 3,001 $ 3,001 
  -% -% -% 2.82% 2.82%
   TOTAL  $ 1,377 $ 58,586 $ 81,921 $ 130,955 $ 272,839 
 6.23% 2.15% 3.03% 3.34% 3.01%

(1) MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES ARE SHOWN USING STATED FINAL MATURITY.

(2) YIELDS PRESENTED ON A FULLY TAX-EQUIVALENT BASIS.

Federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits are an additional part of the Corporation’s liquidity 
and interest rate risk strategies. The combined average balance of these investments during 2010 was 
$64.4 million as compared to $58.6 million in 2009.

DEPOSITS: At December 31, 2010, the Corporation reported an increase in total deposits of 
$1.9 million, or 0.1 percent, from the balance reported at December 31, 2009. The Corporation’s 
strategy is to fund earning asset growth with core deposits, which is an important factor in the 
generation of net interest income. Total average deposits increased $30.1 million, or 2 percent, in 
2010 over 2009 levels.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SETS FORTH INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPOSITION OF THE CORPORATION’S AVERAGE DEPOSIT BASE 
AND AVERAGE INTEREST RATES PAID FOR THE FOLLOWING YEARS:
(IN THOUSANDS) 2010 2009 2008
NONINTEREST-BEARING DEMAND $ 214,753 - % $ 199,543 - % $ 192,578 - %
CHECKING  258,995 0.61   201,399 0.73   144,070 0.76 
SAVINGS  77,023 0.38   70,850 0.45   66,071 0.61 
MONEY MARKETS  510,331 0.71   428,063 1.05   392,795 2.06 
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT  266,134 1.61   397,329 2.51   392,589 3.65 
  TOTAL DEPOSITS $ 1,327,236 0.74 % $ 1,297,184 1.26 % $ 1,188,103 2.01 %

Certificates of deposit $100,000 and over are generally purchased by local municipal governments 
or individuals for periods of one year or less. 
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS REMAINING MATURITY FOR CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT OF $100,000 OR MORE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 
2010:
 (IN THOUSANDS)
THREE MONTHS OR LESS $ 24,424
OVER THREE MONTHS THROUGH SIX MONTHS  31,690
OVER SIX MONTHS THROUGH TWELVE MONTHS  10,653
OVER TWELVE MONTHS  12,544
   TOTAL $ 79,311

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES AND OTHER BORROWINGS: At December 31, 
2010 and 2009, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances totaled $24.1 million and $36.5 million, 
respectively, with a weighted average interest rate of 3.54 percent and 3.59 percent, respectively. 
The Corporation considers FHLB advances an added source of funding, and accordingly, executes 
transactions from time to time to meet its funding requirements. The FHLB advances outstanding at 
December 31, 2010 have varying terms and interest rates, as well as prepayment penalties. There were 
no overnight borrowings at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES AND RELATED PROVISION:  The allowance for loan 
losses was $14.3 million at December 31, 2010 as compared to $13.2 million at December 31, 2009. 
At December 31, 2010, the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans outstanding was 
1.53 percent compared to 1.34 percent at December 31, 2009. The provision for loan losses was $10.0 
million for 2010, $9.7 million for 2009 and $2.4 million for 2008. The allowance as a percentage of 
total loans rose in 2010 as compared to 2009 and the provision increased over the prior year due to 
increases in delinquencies and charge-offs, as well as continued weakness in the overall economy and 
the real estate markets.

The provision was based upon Management’s review and evaluation of the size and composition of 
the loan portfolio, actual loan loss experience, level of delinquencies, general market and economic 
conditions, detailed analysis of individual loans for which full collectability may not be assured, and 
the existence and fair value of the collateral and guarantees securing the loans. Although Management 
used the best information available, the level of the allowance for loan losses remains an estimate, 
which is subject to significant judgment and short-term change. Various regulatory agencies, as an 
integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Corporation’s allowance for loan 
losses. Such agencies may require the Corporation to make additional provisions for loan losses based 
upon information available to them at the time of their examination. Furthermore, the majority of the 
Corporation’s loans are secured by real estate in the State of New Jersey. Accordingly, the collect-
ability of a substantial portion of the carrying value of the Corporation’s loan portfolio is susceptible 
to changes in market conditions in the state and may be adversely affected should real estate values 
decline further or New Jersey experience continuing adverse economic conditions. Future adjustments 
to the allowance may be necessary due to economic, operating, regulatory and other conditions beyond 
the Corporation’s control.
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE LOAN LOSS EXPERIENCE DURING THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, OF THE YEARS INDICATED:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008  2007  2006
ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES AT           
  BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 13,192 $ 9,688 $ 7,500 $ 6,768 $ 6,378
LOANS CHARGED-OFF DURING THE PERIOD:          
  RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE  450  861  7  -  -
  COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  198  1,393  -  -  -
  COMMERCIAL AND CONSTRUCTION  8,330  3,957  214  -  13
  HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  -  15  17  -  -
  CONSUMER AND OTHER  188  51  1  23  13
    TOTAL LOANS CHARGED-OFF  9,166  6,277  239  23  26
RECOVERIES DURING THE PERIOD:           
  RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE  -  -  -  -  -
  COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  15  -  12  -  -
  COMMERCIAL AND CONSTRUCTION  239  73  -  3  1
  HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  -  -  12  -  -
  CONSUMER AND OTHER  2  8  3  2  1
    TOTAL RECOVERIES  256  81  27  5  2
NET CHARGE-OFFS  8,910  6,196  212  18  24
PROVISION CHARGED TO EXPENSE  10,000  9,700  2,400  750  414
ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES AT  
   END OF YEAR $ 14,282 $ 13,192 $ 9,688 $ 7,500 $ 6,768

RATIOS:
ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES/ 
   TOTAL LOANS 1.53% 1.34% 0.92% 0.76% 0.78%
ALLOWANCE FOR RESIDENTIAL 1-4/ 
   RESIDENTIAL 1-4 LOANS 0.40 0.45 0.52 0.47 0.58
ALLOWANCE FOR COMMERCIAL/ 
   COMMERCIAL LOANS 2.74 2.34 1.39 1.14 1.13
ALLOWANCE FOR CONSUMER/CONSUMER  
   LOANS 0.62 0.43 0.49 0.50 0.49
ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES/ 
   TOTAL NON-PERFORMING LOANS 0.76X 1.1X 1.8X 3.5X 3.3X

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES AND THE PERCENTAGE OF EACH LOAN 
CATEGORY TO TOTAL LOANS AS OF DECEMBER 31, OF THE YEARS INDICATED:
 % OF % OF % OF % OF % OF 
 LOAN LOAN LOAN LOAN LOAN 
 CATEGORY CATEGORY CATEGORY CATEGORY CATEGORY 
 TO TOTAL TO TOTAL TO TOTAL TO TOTAL TO TOTAL

(IN THOUSANDS) 2010 LOANS 2009 LOANS 2008 LOANS 2007 LOANS 2006 LOANS

RESIDENTIAL $ 1,682 45.0 $ 2,023 46.0 $ 2,627 50.9 $ 2,333 52.5 $ 2,910 59.1
COMMERCIAL AND OTHER  12,176 47.7  10,889 47.3  6,753 46.3  4,885 43.7  3,591 36.8
CONSUMER  424 7.3  280 6.7  308 2.8  282 3.8  267 4.1
  TOTAL $ 14,282 100.0 $ 13,192 100.0 $ 9,688 100.0 $ 7,500 100.0 $ 6,768 100.0

Net charge-offs in 2010 exceeded historical levels; therefore the Corporation maintained an elevated 
provision for loan losses. The portion of the allowance for loan losses allocated to loans collectively 
evaluated for impairment, commonly referred to as general reserves, increased during the year from 
$11.1 million at December 31, 2009 to $11.8 million at December 31, 2010. General reserves at 
December 31, 2010, exceeded the amount charged off during 2010 and represent 1.30 percent of loans 
collectively evaluated for impairment as of the end of the year. At December 31, 2009, general reserves 
were 1.26 percent of loans collectively evaluated for impairment.
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The allowance for loan losses decreased as a percentage of nonperforming loans as of December 31, 
2010, as the level of nonperforming loans increased from December 31, 2009. Nonperforming loans 
are specifically evaluated for impairment. Also, Management commonly records partial charge-offs of 
the excess of the principal balance over the net realizable value of collateral for collateral dependent 
impaired loans. As a result, the allowance for loan losses does not always change proportionately with 
changes in nonperforming loans.  Management partially charged off $3.0 million on loans identified as 
collateral-dependent impaired loans as of the end of the 2010.

ASSET QUALITY:

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS VARIOUS ASSET QUALITY DATA FOR THE YEARS INDICATED:
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008  2007  2006
 
LOANS PAST DUE 30-89 DAYS $ 5,475 $ 6,015 $ 8,728 $ 11,192 $ 1,499
 
TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURED LOANS $ 7,157 $ 11,123 $ - $ - $ -

LOANS PAST DUE 90 DAYS OR           
  MORE AND STILL ACCRUING INTEREST $ 666 $ 496 $ - $ - $ 197
NON-ACCRUAL LOANS  18,114  11,256  5,393  2,131  1,880
  TOTAL NON-PERFORMING LOANS  18,780  11,752  5,393  2,131  2,077
OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED  4,000  360  1,211  -  -
  TOTAL NON-PERFORMING ASSETS  $ 22,780 $ 12,112 $ 6,604 $ 2,131 $ 2,077
          
RATIOS:          
TOTAL NON-PERFORMING LOANS/TOTAL LOANS  2.01 % 1.19 % 0.51 % 0.22 % 0.24%
TOTAL NON-PERFORMING LOANS/TOTAL ASSETS  1.25  0.78  0.39  0.16  0.16
TOTAL NON-PERFORMING ASSETS/TOTAL ASSETS  1.51  0.80  0.48  0.16  0.16

Interest income of $721 thousand, $365 thousand and $235 thousand would have been recognized 
during 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, if non-accrual loans had been current in accordance with 
their original terms. Interest income of $303 thousand and $204 thousand would have been recog-
nized during 2010 and 2009 had troubled debt restructured loans been in accordance with their original 
terms. The amount of interest income that was recorded for non-accrual loans was $484 thousand and 
$374 thousand for 2010 and 2009. Interest income of $733 thousand and $422 thousand was recorded 
for 2010 and 2009 for troubled debt restructured loans.

Due to the continued weakness in the housing markets and economic environment during 2010, 
some borrowers have found it difficult to make their loan payments under contractual terms. In certain 
of these cases, the Corporation has chosen to grant concessions and modify certain loan terms for a 
limited period of time.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE TYPES OF TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURED LOANS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009:
  DECEMBER 31,  NUMBER OF  DECEMBER 31,  NUMBER OF

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)  2010  RELATIONSHIPS  2009  RELATIONSHIPS

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 1,425  8 $ 4,186  17
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  5,152  4  6,937  2
COMMERCIAL LOANS  580  3  -  -
   TOTAL $ 7,157  15 $ 11,123  19
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All commercial mortgage troubled debt restructured loans are considered and included in impaired 
loans at December 31, 2010 and had specific reserves of $268 thousand. At December 31, 2009, the 
commercial mortgage troubled debt restructured loans of $6.9 million are all considered and included 
in impaired loans with specific reserves of $293 thousand. All troubled debt restructured loans were 
paying in accordance with restructured terms as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

The Corporation does not have any potential problem loans that causes Management to have serious 
doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to comply with the present loan repayment terms and which 
may result in disclosure of such loans.     

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE TYPES OF IMPAIRED LOANS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009. IMPAIRED LOANS INCLUDES 
NON-PERFORMING LOANS OF $18.1 MILLION AND $11.3 MILLION AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009, RESPECTIVELY. IMPAIRED 
LOANS ALSO INCLUDES COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURED LOANS OF $5.2 MILLION AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 
AND $6.9 MILLION AT DECEMBER 31, 2009.
 DECEMBER 31, NUMBER OF DECEMBER 31, NUMBER OF

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2010 RELATIONSHIPS 2009 RELATIONSHIPS

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 4,578 12 $ 2,479 8
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  15,642 14  21,382 10
COMMERCIAL LOANS  2,330 7  5,426 12
CONSTRUCTION LOANS  5,225 2  17,437 2
CONSUMER LOANS  537 2  - -
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  85 1  85 1
   TOTAL $ 28,397 38 $ 46,809 33
SPECIFIC RESERVES, INCLUDED IN THE      
    ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES $ 2,479  $ 2,064 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS: 

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE CORPORATION BY EXPECTED PAYMENT PERIOD, 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010. FURTHER DISCUSSION OF THESE COMMITMENTS IS INCLUDED IN THE FOOTNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTED BELOW:
  LESS THAN      MORE THAN   
(IN THOUSANDS)  ONE YEAR  1-3 YEARS  3-5 YEARS  5 YEARS  TOTAL

LOAN COMMITMENTS $ 108,701 $ - $ - $ - $ 108,701
LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS  3,000  6,126  3,000  12,000  24,126
OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATIONS  2,203  4,310  3,888  9,814  20,215
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS  258  886  1,089  7,230  9,463
PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS  417  -  -  -  417
  TOTAL CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS $ 114,579 $ 11,322 $ 7,977 $ 29,044 $ 162,922

Long-term debt obligations include borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank with defined 
terms. The table reflects scheduled repayments of principal. 

Leases represent obligations entered into by the Corporation for the use of land and premises. The 
leases generally have escalation terms based upon certain defined indexes. Common area maintenance 
charges may also apply and are adjusted annually based on the terms of the lease agreements.

Purchase obligations represent legally binding and enforceable agreements to purchase goods and 
services from third parties and consist of contractual obligations under data processing service agree-
ments. The Corporation also enters into various routine rental and maintenance contracts for facilities 
and equipment. These contracts are generally for one year.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS:  

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE AMOUNTS AND EXPECTED MATURITIES OF SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS, CONSISTING PRIMARILY OF 
LETTERS OF CREDIT, AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010. FURTHER DISCUSSION OF THESE COMMITMENTS IS INCLUDED IN NOTE 13 TO THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
  LESS THAN      MORE THAN  
(IN THOUSANDS)  ONE YEAR  1-3 YEARS  3-5 YEARS  5 YEARS  TOTAL

FINANCIAL LETTERS OF CREDIT $ 796 $ - $ - $ - $ 796
PERFORMANCE LETTERS OF CREDIT  2,518  -  -  -  2,518
COMMERCIAL LETTERS OF CREDIT  3,815  110  275  -  4,200

   TOTAL LETTERS OF CREDIT $ 7,129 $ 110 $ 275 $ - $ 7,514

Commitments under standby letters of credit, both financial and performance, do not necessarily 
represent future cash requirements, in that these commitments often expire without being drawn upon.

OTHER INCOME: In 2010, the Corporation recorded total other income of $14.1 million, an increase 
of $317 thousand or 2 percent over 2009 levels. The increase in 2010 was attributable to increases in 
trust fees, service charges and income from loan sales, offset in part by impairment charges on several 
equity and trust preferred pooled securities. Trust fees totaling $9.9 million were realized in 2010, 
an increase of $473 thousand or 5 percent, over the levels in 2009. This increase is attributable to 
an increase in the market value of assets under administration, on which the investment management 
fees are based and higher margin business, partially offset by a reduction of certain fees earned on 
placement of funds in money market instruments, due to the reduced interest rate environment. The 
market value of assets under administration increased to $1.94 billion at December 31, 2010, compared 
to $1.86 billion at December 31, 2009, as the result of improving values in the equity markets as well 
as new business activity.

The Corporation recorded income from service charges and fees of $2.8 million in 2010, an increase 
of $326 thousand or 13 percent, over the levels in 2009. This increase is attributable to increased 
overdraft and NSF charges.

The Corporation recorded income of $863 thousand on the cash surrender value on Bank Owned 
Life Insurance (BOLI) policies in 2010, as compared to $886 thousand in 2009, a decrease of $23 
thousand or 3 percent, primarily due to the lower interest rate environment during 2010. 

Gain on loans sold at origination increased from $657 thousand in 2009 to $1.0 million in 2010, 
an increase of $384 thousand or 58 percent. More customers have been interested in longer-term, 
fixed-rate mortgages in the current low-rate environment. These mortgages have been sold rather than 
retained in portfolio for interest rate risk management purposes.

Other noninterest income of $329 thousand was realized in 2010 as compared to $286 thousand in 
2009, an increase of $43 thousand or 15 percent. This is the result of an increase in the late fee income 
earned on loans offset in part by a loss realized on the sale of other real estate owned during 2010. 

Net gains on sales of securities totaled $124 thousand and $69 thousand in 2010 and 2009, respec-
tively. In the second half of 2010, the Corporation recorded two other-than-temporary non-cash 
impairment charges, $360 thousand on its equity portfolio and $581 thousand on three trust preferred 
pooled securities.

OPERATING EXPENSES: In 2010, operating expenses totaled $43.1 million, as compared to $42.3 
million in 2009, an increase of $844 thousand, or 2 percent.

Salaries and benefits expense, which accounts for the largest portion of operating expenses, totaled 
$22.5 million in 2010, an increase of $652 thousand, or 3 percent, when compared to 2009. This 
increase is due, in part, to normal salary increases, increased benefit costs and increased commissions 
paid to mortgage originators on staff. As noted earlier, in 2010 the Corporation recorded higher income 
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in 2010 on the sale of longer-term, fixed-rate mortgage loans, which were originated as a result of the 
efforts of our mortgage originators. At December 31, 2010, the Corporation’s full-time equivalent staff 
was 284 compared with 281 at December 31, 2009.

Premises and equipment expense totaled $9.6 million in 2010 as compared to $8.8 million in 
2009, an increase of $821 thousand, or 9 percent. This increase is attributable to the addition of a new 
corporate headquarters with higher operating expenses than the previous administration building. The 
Corporation also occupied two new offices in 2009, increasing occupancy expenses for 2010.

In 2010, the FDIC assessment expense decreased $987 thousand, or 30 percent, to $2.3 million from 
$3.3 million. The 2009 FDIC insurance expense included the industry-wide special FDIC insurance 
premium assessed in the second quarter of 2009. Additionally, the Bank’s quarterly assessments have 
declined in 2010.

Trust expense totaled $1.3 million in 2010, increasing $470 thousand, or 57 percent, over 2009 
expense as the costs of a major system upgrade were recorded. The new system is expected to increase 
efficiencies in maintaining client information as well as increase capacity for additional services. 
Advertising expense totaled $691 thousand and $793 thousand in 2010 and 2009, respectively, a 
decline of $102 thousand or 13 percent, due to a general reduction in marketing efforts. Due to the 
installation of new telephone technology, expense for this line item increased $244 thousand, or 45 
percent, over 2009. In addition, the Corporation recorded a provision for losses on other real estate 
owned of $640 thousand in 2009 associated with a contract for sale, while there was no such provision 
in 2010. The Corporation strives to operate in an efficient manner and control costs as a means of 
producing increased earnings and enhancing shareholder value.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE MAJOR COMPONENTS OF OPERATING EXPENSES:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
SALARIES AND BENEFITS $ 22,529 $ 21,877 $ 20,586
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  9,624  8,803  8,470
FDIC ASSESSMENT  2,322  3,309  563
PROFESSIONAL AND LEGAL FEES  1,505  1,584  1,462
TRUST DEPARTMENT  1,291  821  643
ADVERTISING  691  793  1,151
PROVISION FOR ORE LOSSES  -  640  -
TELEPHONE  787  543  471
STATIONERY AND SUPPLIES  450  512  479
POSTAGE  357  376  363
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES  3,554  3,008  3,097
   TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES $ 43,110 $ 42,266 $ 37,285

INCOME TAXES:  Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $3.2 million as 
compared to income tax expense of $3.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The effective 
tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2010 was 29.66 percent compared to 30.00 percent for the 
year ended December 31, 2009.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 2009 COMPARED TO 2008: For the year ended December 31, 2009, 
the Corporation recorded net income of $7.1 million and diluted earnings per share, after the effect 
of the preferred dividend, of $0.64. These results compared to a net loss of $22.1 million and loss per 
diluted share of $2.53 for the year ended December 31, 2008. Per share results have been adjusted for 
the five percent stock dividend paid in August 2009. In 2009, these results produced a positive return 
on average assets of 0.49 percent and a positive return on average common shareholders’ equity of 
6.26 percent as compared to a negative return on average assets of 1.62 percent and a negative return 
on average common shareholders’ equity of 20.74 percent in 2008.
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The results for 2008 include other-than-temporary impairment charges on investment securities 
totaling $56.1 million, $36.5 million after taxes or $4.19 per diluted share, as adjusted for the five 
percent stock dividend paid in August 2009. For comparative purposes, the Corporation believes 
that comparing net income without considering the 2008 impairment charges on investment secu-
rities provides a better analysis of net income trends; therefore, net income available for common 
shareholders for 2009 declined $8.8 million or 61 percent when compared to net income for 2008, 
excluding the impairment charges. The 2009 period includes increases in the provision for loan losses, 
the industry-wide FDIC assessment and in other real estate owned expense, as well as dividends on 
preferred stock issued in January 2009, when compared to the 2008 period.

In 2009, on a fully tax-equivalent basis, net interest income rose to $49.4 million from $47.4 million 
in 2008, due to increased average earning assets. For the year ended December 31, 2009, average 
earning assets increased $88.7 million or 7 percent from average balances in 2008. Interest income 
on earning assets, on a fully tax-equivalent basis, declined $6.0 million to $67.0 million for 2009 as 
compared to 2008. Rates earned on earning assets declined 80 basis points in 2009 to 4.87 percent. 
Despite the growth in the Corporation’s earning assets, interest income declined in 2009 as compared 
to 2008, due to the lower rates earned on earning assets. Average interest-bearing liabilities for the year 
ended December 31, 2009, totaled $1.14 billion, reflecting an increase of $84.4 million or 8 percent 
from the average balance in 2008, while the average rate paid declined 88 basis points from rates paid 
in 2008. The decline in the average rate on interest-bearing liabilities was due to the overall decline in 
market rates in 2009 coupled with targeted growth of lower-costing deposits. The Corporation’s net 
interest margin declined ten basis points to 3.58 percent in 2009 from 3.68 percent in 2008.

The Corporation recorded other income for the year ended December 31, 2009, of $13.8 million as 
compared to other income, excluding impairment charges, of $14.9 million, in 2008. The decline was 
attributable to decreases in trust fees, BOLI income and net securities gains, offset in part by increases 
in service charges and other noninterest income. 

In 2009, the Corporation realized trust fees totaling $9.4 million, a decline of $1.1 million, or almost 
11 percent, over the levels in 2008. The market value of assets under administration, on which fees 
are generated, fell significantly during the first half of 2009 due to the recession. The market value 
of assets under administration improved in the second half of 2009, rising to almost $1.86 billion at 
December 31, 2009, as compared to $1.80 billion at year end 2008, and is due to the improving values 
in the equity markets and new business activity. Additionally, the decrease reflects the reduction of 
certain recurring fees earned on the placement of funds in money market instruments, due to the low 
interest rate environment in 2009, as well as a reduction in non-recurring fiduciary fees. 

The Corporation recorded income on increased cash surrender value of Bank Owned Life Insurance 
(BOLI) policies of $886 thousand in 2009 as compared to $1.1 million in 2008, a decrease of $229 
thousand or 21 percent, primarily due to the lower interest rate environment during 2009.

In 2009, other noninterest income of $943 thousand was realized as compared to $257 thousand in 
2008, an increase of $686 thousand. This is the result of an increase in the income earned on the sale 
of mortgage loans at origination of $657 thousand from $137 thousand in the same 2008 period. In 
addition, the Corporation recognized a pre-tax loss in 2009 of $13 thousand on the sale of non-banking 
related property compared to a pre-tax loss in 2008 of $153 thousand on the disposal of premises and 
equipment related to the relocation of the Shunpike Branch to Green Village Road and the closure of 
the New Vernon Branch.

The Corporation recorded operating expenses of $42.3 million in 2009 as compared to $37.3 million 
in 2008, an increase of $5.0 million or 13 percent. In 2009, salaries and benefits expense totaled $21.9 
million, an increase of $1.3 million, or 6 percent, as compared to 2008. This increase was due, in part, 
to increased staff for two new branch locations and one new trust office, normal salary increases and 
increased health care costs, offset in part by reduced retirement costs. In addition, the Corporation 
paid increased commissions in 2009 to mortgage originators on staff. As noted earlier, the Corporation 
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recorded higher income in 2009 on the sale of mortgage loans, which were originated as a result of the 
efforts of our mortgage originators. At December 31, 2009, the Corporation’s full-time equivalent staff 
was 281 compared with 278 at December 31, 2008.

In 2009, premises and equipment expense increased to $8.8 million from $8.5 million in 2008, an 
increase of $333 thousand, or 4 percent. The Corporation opened new branches in Piscataway, New 
Jersey, in late 2008 and Summit, New Jersey, in 2009, as well as a new Trust Office in Bethlehem, 
Pennsylvania, in 2009.

In 2009, there was a substantial, industry-wide increase in the FDIC assessment rates, resulting in a 
$2.7 million increase in the Corporation’s FDIC assessment expense over 2008 levels. Professional and 
legal fees increased $122 thousand or 8 percent, over levels for 2008, due in part to expenses related 
to increased delinquent loans and loan review, the lease on the new administration building and the 
subsequent partial redemption of the preferred stock as well as expenses associated with the enhanced 
dividend reinvestment plan.

In 2009, Trust expense rose $178 thousand or 28 percent to $821 thousand as compared to 2008, 
due in part to higher processing fees to maintain the trust customers’ accounts, offset in part by lower 
expenses to prepare customers’ tax returns. Due to a general reduction in marketing efforts, advertising 
expense totaled $793 thousand in 2009, a decline of $358 thousand or 31 percent, compared to 2008. 
The Corporation also recorded a provision for losses on OREO of $640 thousand in 2009 associated 
with a contract for sale, while there was no such provision in 2008.

CAPITAL RESOURCES:  A solid capital base provides the Corporation with the ability to support 
future growth and financial strength. Maintaining a strong capital position supports the Corporation’s 
goal of providing shareholders an attractive and stable long-term return on investment. Total share-
holders’ equity decreased $1.8 million or 2 percent to $117.7 million at December 31, 2010 as 
compared with $119.5 million at December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2010, the Corporation’s Tier 1 and total capital ratios were 12.91 percent and 
14.16 percent, respectively. The Corporation’s capital leverage ratio was 7.96 percent at December 31, 
2010. Management believes the Corporation’s capital ratios are adequate.

On January 9, 2009, under the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “Treasury”) Capital Purchase 
Program (“CPP”), the Corporation sold 28,685 shares of Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred 
Stock, Series A, having a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share, and a ten-year warrant to purchase 
up to 150,296 shares of the Corporation’s common stock at an exercise price of $28.63 per share, for 
an aggregate purchase price of $28.7 million.

Cumulative dividends on the Preferred Shares will accrue on the liquidation preference at a rate of 5 
percent per annum for the first five years, and at a rate of 9 percent per annum thereafter. Subject to the 
approval of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the Preferred Shares are redeemable 
at the option of the Corporation at 100 percent of their liquidation preference. If the Corporation 
redeems the Preferred Stock and the Treasury still owns the Warrant, the Corporation could repurchase 
the Warrant from the Treasury for its fair market value. If the Corporation and the Treasury cannot 
agree on a repurchase price, the warrant will be sold by the Treasury in a public auction. Unless both 
the holder and the Corporation agree otherwise, the exercise of the Warrant will be a net exercise (i.e., 
the holder does not pay cash but gives up shares with a market value at the time of exercise equal to 
the exercise price, resulting in a net settlement with significantly fewer than the 150,296 shares of 
Common Stock being issued).

On January 6, 2010, the Corporation repurchased 25 percent of the preferred shares, repaying 
approximately $7.2 million to the Treasury, including accrued and unpaid dividends of approximately 
$51 thousand. The Corporation’s redemption of the shares was not subject to additional conditions or 
stipulations from the Treasury. As a result of the repurchase, the accretion related to the preferred stock 
was accelerated and approximately $330 thousand was recorded as a reduction to retained earnings in 
the first quarter of 2010.
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In February 2011, the Corporation received approval to repurchase an additional 25 percent of the 
preferred shares. On March 2, 2011, the Corporation repaid approximately $7.2 million to the Treasury, 
including accrued and unpaid dividends of approximately $17 thousand. As with the first redemption, 
this one was also not subject to additional conditions or stipulations from the Treasury. Accretion 
related to the preferred stock was accelerated and approximately $244 thousand was recorded as a 
reduction to retained earnings in the first quarter of 2011.

LIQUIDITY:  Liquidity refers to an institution’s ability to meet short-term requirements in the form 
of loan fundings, deposit withdrawals and maturing obligations. Principal sources of liquidity include 
cash, temporary investments, securities available for sale, deposit inflows and loan repayments.

Management feels the Corporation’s liquidity position is sufficient to meet future needs. Cash and 
cash equivalents, including federal funds sold and interest-earning deposits, totaled $62.7 million 
at December 31, 2010. In addition, the Corporation has $275.1 million in securities designated as 
available for sale. These securities can be sold in response to liquidity concerns. As of December 31, 
2010, investment securities held to maturity and securities available for sale maturing within one year 
amounted to $14.6 million.

Another source of liquidity is borrowing capacity. The Corporation has a variety of sources of 
liquidity available, including short and long-term borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of 
New York, short-term borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank Discount Window, federal funds 
purchased from correspondent banks and loan participation or sales of loans. The Corporation also 
generates liquidity from the regular principal payments received on its loan portfolio and on its 
mortgage-backed security portfolio.

ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT: The Corporation’s Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO) is 
responsible for managing the exposure to changes in market interest rates and for establishing policies 
that monitor and coordinate its sources, uses and pricing of funds.

Management has sought to manage interest rate risk in order to control the exposure of earnings and 
capital to changes in interest rates. As part of the ongoing asset/liability management, Management 
currently uses the following strategies to manage interest rate risk:

• Actively market adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans

• Actively market commercial mortgage loans, which tend to have shorter terms and higher interest 
rates than residential mortgage loans, and which generate customer relationships that can result 
in higher non-interest bearing demand deposit accounts

• Actively sell longer-term, fixed-rate mortgages in the current low rate environment

• Actively market core deposit relationships, which are generally longer duration liabilities

• Lengthen the weighted average maturity of liabilities through retail deposit pricing strategies 
and through longer-term wholesale funding sources such as fixed-rate advances from the Federal 
Home Loan Bank of New York

• Invest in shorter duration securities

• Maintain high levels of capital

At this time, the Corporation is not engaged in hedging through the use of derivatives nor does it 
use interest rate caps and floors although these are options available to manage interest rate risk.

ALCO uses simulation modeling to analyze the Corporation’s net interest income sensitivity, as 
well as the Corporation’s net portfolio value sensitivity to movements in interest rates. The model is 
based on the actual maturity and repricing characteristics of rate sensitive assets and liabilities. The 
model incorporates certain assumptions, which Management believes to be reasonable regarding the 
impact of changing interest rates and the prepayment assumptions of certain assets and liabilities as of 
December 31, 2010. The model assumes changes in interest rates without any proactive change in the 
balance sheet by Management. In the model, the forecasted shape of the yield curve remains static as 
of December 31, 2010.
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The simulation model is based on market interest rates and prepayment speeds prevalent in the 
market as of December 31, 2010. New interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability originations 
and rate spreads are estimated using the Corporation’s budgeted originations for 2011.

In an immediate and sustained 200 basis point increase in market rates at December 31, 2010, net 
interest income for 2011 would decline approximately 5 percent and net interest income for 2012 would 
improve approximately 2 percent, compared to a flat interest rate scenario.

THE TABLE BELOW SHOWS THE ESTIMATED CHANGES IN THE CORPORATION’S NET PORTFOLIO VALUE (ALSO KNOWN AS ECONOMIC 
VALUE OF PORTFOLIO EQUITY) THAT WOULD RESULT FROM AN IMMEDIATE PARALLEL CHANGE IN THE MARKET INTEREST RATES AT 
DECEMBER 31, 2010.
 ESTIMATED INCREASE/ NPV AS A PERCENTAGE OF 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)   DECREASE IN NPV PRESENT VALUE OF ASSETS (2)
CHANGE IN          INCREASE/
INTERESTRATES  ESTIMATED      NPV   (DECREASE)
(BASIS POINTS)  NPV (1)  AMOUNT  PERCENT  RATIO(3)            (BASIS POINTS)
+300 $ 149,187 $ (24,041)  (13.88)%  10.50%  (85)
+200  160,340  (12,888)  (7.44)  11.00  (35)
+100  171,490  (1,738)  (1.00)  11.46  11
FLAT INTEREST RATES  173,228  -  -  11.35  -
-100  168,708  (4,520)  (2.61)  10.90  (45)
-200  156,836  (16,392)  (9.46)  10.07  (128)
-300  142,344  (30,884)  (17.83)  9.14  (221)

(1) NPV IS THE DISCOUNTED PRESENT VALUE OF EXPECTED CASH FLOWS FROM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES.

(2)  PRESENT VALUE OF ASSETS REPRESENTS THE DISCOUNTED PRESENT VALUE OF INCOMING CASH FLOWS ON INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS.

(3)  NPV RATIO REPRESENTS NPV DIVIDED BY THE PRESENT VALUE OF ASSETS.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodologies used in determining interest rate risk through 
changes in net portfolio value. Modeling changes in net portfolio value require making certain assump-
tions that may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in 
market interest rates. In this regard, the net portfolio value tables presented assume that the composition 
of our interest-sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains constant 
over the period being measured and assume that a particular change in 
interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of 
the duration or repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accordingly, 
although the net portfolio value tables provide an indication of our 
interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measure-
ments are not intended to and do not provide a precise forecast of the 
effect of changes in market interest rates on our net interest income and 
will differ from actual results.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES:  The 
financial statements and related financial data presented herein have 
been prepared in terms of historical dollars without considering changes 
in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. 
Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the assets and liabil-
ities of a financial institution are monetary in nature. As a result, interest 
rates have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s perfor-
mance than do general levels of inflation.

PGB TRUST AND INVESTMENTS:  Since its inception in 1972, 
PGB Trust and Investments, a division of the Bank, has served in the 
roles of executor and trustee while providing investment management, 
custodial, tax, retirement and financial services to its growing client 
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base. Officers from PGB Trust and Investments are available to provide investment services at the 
Corporate Headquarters in Bedminster and at five other locations, Clinton, Gladstone, Morristown and 
Summit, New Jersey and Bethlehem, Pennsylvania.

The market value of assets under administration at December 31, 2010 was $1.94 billion. Fee 
income generated by PGB Trust Investments was $9.9 million, $9.4 million and $10.5 million in 2010, 
2009 and 2008, respectively.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS:  The foregoing contains forward-looking statements within 
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements are not historical 
facts and include expressions about Management’s confidence and strategies and Management’s 
expectations about new and existing programs and products, investments, relationships, opportunities 
and market conditions. These statements may be identified by such forward-looking terminology as 
“expect”, “look”, “believe”, “anticipate”, “may”, or similar statements or variations of such terms. 
Actual results may differ materially from such forward-looking statements. Factors that may cause 
results to differ materially from such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to

• a continued or unexpected decline in the economy, in particular in our New Jersey market area; 

• declines in value in our investment portfolio; 

• higher than expected increases in our allowance for loan losses; 

• higher than expected increases in loan losses or in the level of non-performing loans; 

• unexpected changes in interest rates;

• inability to successfully grow our business;

• inability to manage our growth;

• a continued or unexpected decline in real estate values within our market areas; 

• legislative and regulatory actions (including the impact of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform 
and Consumer Protection Act and related regulations) subject us to additional regulatory 
oversight which may result in increased compliance costs;

• higher than expected FDIC insurance premiums;

• lack of liquidity to fund our various cash obligations;

• repurchase of our preferred shares issued under the Treasury’s Capital Purchase Program which 
will impact net income available to our common shareholders and our earnings per share;

• reduction in our lower-cost funding sources;

• our inability to adapt to technological changes;

• claims and litigation pertaining to fiduciary responsibility, environmental laws and other matters; 
and

• other unexpected material adverse changes in our operations or earnings.

The Corporation undertakes no duty to update any forward-looking statement to conform the 
statement to actual results or changes in the Corporation’s expectations. Although we believe that 
the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, the Corporation cannot 
guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA:

THE FOLLOWING IS SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES FOR THE YEARS 
INDICATED. THIS INFORMATION IS DERIVED FROM THE HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ IN 
CONJUNCTION WITH THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES.
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)  2010  2009  2008  2007  2006
SUMMARY EARNINGS: 
  INTEREST INCOME $ 60,922 $ 66,007 $ 71,917 $ 72,352 $ 67,267
  INTEREST EXPENSE  11,032  17,659  25,597  36,483  34,444
    NET INTEREST INCOME  49,890  48,348  46,320  35,869  32,823
  PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  10,000  9,700  2,400  750  414
   NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION           
     FOR LOAN LOSSES  39,890  38,648  43,920  35,119  32,409
   OTHER INCOME, EXCLUSIVE OF SECURITIES          
   GAINS/(LOSSES), NET  14,932  13,729  14,382  13,789  12,048
   SECURITIES GAINS/(LOSSES), NET  124  69  483  254  (1,781)
   IMPAIRMENT CHARGES ON SECURITIES  (941)  -  (56,146)  -  -
   OTHER EXPENSES  43,110  42,266  37,285  32,087  28,945
   INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  10,895  10,180  (34,646)  17,075  13,731
  INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT)  3,231  3,054  (12,586)  5,213  3,505
NET INCOME/(LOSS)  7,664  7,126  (22,060)  11,862  10,226
DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK AND ACCRETION  1,686  1,493  -  -  -
NET INCOME/(LOSS) AVAILABLE TO  
  COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 5,978 $ 5,633 $ (22,060) $ 11,862 $ 10,226

PER SHARE DATA (REFLECTS A 5 PERCENT STOCK DIVIDEND IN 2009 EXCEPT FOR CASH DIVIDENDS PER SHARE):
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE-BASIC $ 0.68 $ 0.64 $ (2.53) $ 1.36 $ 1.18
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE-DILUTED  0.68  0.64  (2.53)  1.35  1.16
CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED  0.20  0.26  0.64  0.62  0.58
BOOK VALUE END-OF-PERIOD  11.03  10.57  9.64  12.32  11.95
WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING  8,784,655  8,715,419  8,707,327  8,714,234  8,681,637
COMMON STOCK EQUIVALENTS (DILUTIVE)  366  50,838  -  73,241  107,199

BALANCE SHEET DATA (AT PERIOD END):
  TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,505,425 $ 1,512,353 $ 1,385,425 $ 1,346,976 $ 1,288,376
  INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY  140,277  89,459  51,731  45,139  55,165
  SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  279,700  277,799  173,543  236,944  282,878
  TOTAL LOANS  932,497  983,537  1,052,982  981,180  870,153
  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  14,282  13,192  9,688  7,500  6,768
  TOTAL DEPOSITS  1,351,546  1,349,669  1,237,888  1,180,267  1,144,736
  TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  117,716  119,509  83,894  107,429  103,763
  TRUST ASSETS UNDER ADMINISTRATION  
    (MARKET VALUE)  1,940,404  1,856,229  1,804,629  2,028,232  1,924,954
  CASH DIVIDENDS:          
     COMMON  1,757  2,199  5,304  5,150  4,794
     PREFERRED  1,126  1,218  -  -  -
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SELECTED PERFORMANCE RATIOS: 
 2010  2009  2008  2007  2006 
  RETURN ON AVERAGE TOTAL ASSETS 0.52 % 0.49 % (1.62) % 0.90 % 0.79 %
  RETURN ON AVERAGE COMMON SHAREHOLDERS’          
    EQUITY 6.26  6.26  (20.74)  11.12  10.10 
  DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO 29.39  39.05  (24.04)  43.42  46.88 
  NON-INTEREST EXPENSES TO AVERAGE ASSETS 2.91  2.90  2.74  2.44  2.24 
  NON-INTEREST INCOME TO AVERAGE ASSETS 0.95  0.95  (3.03)  1.07  0.80 

ASSET QUALITY RATIOS (AT PERIOD END):          
  NON-PERFORMING LOANS TO TOTAL LOANS 2.01 % 1.19 % 0.51 % 0.22 % 0.24 %
  NON-PERFORMING ASSETS TO          
    TOTAL ASSETS 1.51  0.80  0.48  0.16  0.16 
  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES TO          
    NON-PERFORMING LOANS 0.8 X 1.1 X 1.8 X 3.5 X 3.3 X
  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES TO          
    TOTAL LOANS 1.53 % 1.34 % 0.92 % 0.76 % 0.78 %
  NET CHARGE-OFFS TO AVERAGE LOANS PLUS          
    OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED 0.93  0.61  0.02  0.00  0.00 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RATIOS:          
  AVERAGE LOANS TO AVERAGE DEPOSITS 72.22 % 78.74 % 85.01 % 78.22 % 77.47 %
  TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY TO           
    TOTAL ASSETS 7.82  7.90  6.06  7.98  8.05 
  AVERAGE COMMON SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY TO          
    AVERAGE ASSETS 6.43  6.17  7.81  8.12  7.84 
  TOTAL CAPITAL TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS 14.16  13.71  10.05  15.91  16.31 
  TIER 1 CAPITAL TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS 12.91  12.45  9.11  14.92  15.33 
  TIER 1 LEVERAGE RATIO 7.96  7.93  6.15  8.59  8.20 
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE SETS FORTH CERTAIN UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE PERIODS INDICATED:
SELECTED 2010 QUARTERLY DATA:
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)  MARCH 31  JUNE 30  SEPTEMBER 30  DECEMBER 31
INTEREST INCOME $ 15,791 $ 15,450 $ 14,974 $ 14,707
INTEREST EXPENSE  3,243  2,963  2,612  2,214
  NET INTEREST INCOME  12,548  12,487  12,362  12,493
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  2,400  2,750  2,000  2,850
TRUST FEES  2,364  2,686  2,254  2,598
SECURITIES GAINS/(LOSSES), NET  -  2  126  (4)
IMPAIRMENT CHARGES  -  -  (360)  (581)
OTHER INCOME  1,108  1,098  1,203  1,621
OPERATING EXPENSES  10,530  11,005  10,886  10,689
  INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  3,090  2,518  2,699  2,588
INCOME TAX EXPENSE  965  762  793  711
  NET INCOME  2,125  1,756  1,906  1,877
DIVIDENDS AND ACCRETION ON PREFERRED STOCK  710  324  326  326
  NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 1,415 $ 1,432 $ 1,580 $ 1,551
EARNINGS PER SHARE-BASIC $ 0.16 $ 0.16 $ 0.18 $ 0.18
EARNINGS PER SHARE-DILUTED  0.16  0.16  0.18  0.18

SELECTED 2009 QUARTERLY DATA:
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) MARCH 31  JUNE 30  SEPTEMBER 30  DECEMBER 31
INTEREST INCOME $ 16,795 $ 16,709 $ 16,380 $ 16,123
INTEREST EXPENSE  4,987  4,543  4,129  4,000
  NET INTEREST INCOME  11,808  12,166  12,251  12,123
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  2,000  2,000  2,750  2,950
TRUST FEES  2,332  2,550  2,200  2,346
SECURITIES GAINS/(LOSSES), NET  5  108  (2)  (42)
OTHER INCOME  983  1,114  1,137  1,067
OPERATING EXPENSES  9,524  11,195  10,940  10,607
  INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  3,604  2,743  1,896  1,937
INCOME TAX EXPENSE  1,122  813  583  536
  NET INCOME  2,482  1,930  1,313  1,401
DIVIDENDS AND ACCRETION ON PREFERRED STOCK  205  428  430  430
  NET INCOME AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 2,277 $ 1,502 $ 883 $ 971
EARNINGS PER SHARE-BASIC $ 0.26 $ 0.17 $ 0.10 $ 0.11
EARNINGS PER SHARE-DILUTED  0.26  0.17  0.10  0.11

SELECTED 2008 QUARTERLY DATA:
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)  MARCH 31  JUNE 30  SEPTEMBER 30  DECEMBER 31
INTEREST INCOME $ 18,345 $ 17,612 $ 17,912 $ 18,048
INTEREST EXPENSE  7,831  6,195  5,759  5,812
  NET INTEREST INCOME  10,514  11,417  12,153  12,236
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  430  590  780  600
TRUST FEES  2,485  2,665  2,489  2,899
IMPAIRMENT CHARGES  -  -  -  (56,146)
SECURITIES GAINS, NET  310  69  104  -
OTHER INCOME  934  927  964  1,019
OPERATING EXPENSES  8,609  9,129  9,591  9,956
  INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  5,204  5,359  5,339  (50,548)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT)  1,741  1,780  1,822  (17,929)
  NET INCOME/(LOSS) $ 3,463 $ 3,579 $ 3,517 $ (32,619)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE-BASIC $ 0.40 $ 0.41 $ 0.40 $ (3.75)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE-DILUTED  0.39  0.41  0.40  (3.75)
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COMMON STOCK PRICES (UNAUDITED)

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE 2010 AND 2009 RANGE OF PRICES PAID ON KNOWN TRADES OF  
PEAPACK-GLADSTONE FINANCIAL CORPORATION COMMON STOCK AND THE DIVIDENDS DECLARED EACH QUARTER.
 DIVIDENDS

 DECLARED

2010  HIGH  LOW  PER SHARE

1ST QUARTER $ 15.87 $ 10.65 $ 0.05
2ND QUARTER  16.57  11.64  0.05
3RD QUARTER  13.59  10.60  0.05
4TH QUARTER  13.29  11.17  0.05

 DIVIDENDS

 DECLARED

2009  HIGH  LOW  PER SHARE 
1ST QUARTER $ 27.68 $ 11.22 $ 0.16
2ND QUARTER  22.00  15.38  0.05
3RD QUARTER  19.72  15.76  -*
4TH QUARTER  16.05  11.03  0.05*
THE STOCK PRICES HAVE BEEN RESTATED TO REFLECT THE FIVE PERCENT STOCK DIVIDEND DECLARED JUNE 18, 2009.

*  FOR THE THIRD QUARTER OF 2009, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS VOTED TO CHANGE FUTURE DIVIDEND DECLARATION DATES 
TO THE MONTH FOLLOWING THE END OF EACH QUARTER. THIS ALLOWED THE BOARD TO DECLARE DIVIDENDS BASED UPON THE 
PRIOR QUARTER’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE. THUS, THE $0.05 DIVIDEND DECLARED IN OCTOBER 2009, WAS BASED ON THE 
THIRD QUARTER’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal 
control over financial reporting. The Corporation’s internal control system was designed to provide 
reasonable assurance to the Corporation’s management and board of directors regarding the preparation 
and fair presentation of published financial statements.   All internal control systems, no matter how 
well designed, have inherent limitations.  Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can 
provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting 
as of December 31, 2010. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control-Integrated 
Framework.  Based upon our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2010, the Corporation’s 
internal control over financial reporting is effective based upon those criteria.  The Corporation’s inde-
pendent auditors have issued an audit report on the effective operation of the Corporation’s internal 
control over financial reporting.  This report begins on the next page.  

Frank A. Kissel    Jeffrey J. Carfora
Chairman of the Board and  Executive Vice President, 
Chief Executive Officer   Chief Financial Officer and 
     Chief Accounting Officer

March 16, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

PEAPACK-GLADSTONE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

GLADSTONE, NEW JERSEY

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of Peapack-Gladstone 
Financial Corporation (the Company) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consoli-
dated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in 
the three-year period ended December 31, 2010. We also have audited Peapack-Gladstone Financial 
Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).  The Company’s management is responsible 
for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, 
included in the accompanying Management Report Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.  Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the 
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material 
misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s 
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial 
statements.



33

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or 
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Peapack-Gladstone Financial Corporation as of December 31, 2010 
and 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year 
period ended December 31, 2010 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
Also in our opinion, Peapack-Gladstone Financial Corporation maintained, in all material respects, 
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on criteria established 
in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

 Crowe Horwath LLP

Livingston, New Jersey

March 15, 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION
 DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE DATA)  2010  2009
ASSETS    
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS $ 6,490 $ 7,864
FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD  100  201
INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS  56,097  71,907
  TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   62,687  79,972
INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY (FAIR    
  VALUE $138,438 IN 2010 AND $87,827 IN 2009)  140,277  89,459
SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  275,076  272,484
FHLB AND FRB STOCK, AT COST  4,624  5,315
LOANS  932,497  983,537
  LESS: ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  14,282  13,192
  NET LOANS  918,215  970,345
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  33,820  27,911
OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED  4,000  360
ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE  4,231  4,444
BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE  27,074  26,292
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS, NET  25,725  23,522
OTHER ASSETS  9,696  12,249
    TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,505,425 $ 1,512,353

LIABILITIES    
DEPOSITS:    
  NONINTEREST-BEARING DEMAND DEPOSITS $ 228,764 $ 216,127
  INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS:    
    CHECKING  290,322  255,058
    SAVINGS  80,799  73,866
    MONEY MARKET ACCOUNTS  524,449  458,303
    CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT $100,000 AND OVER  79,311  147,138
    CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT LESS THAN $100,000  147,901  199,177
     TOTAL DEPOSITS  1,351,546  1,349,669
FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES  24,126  36,499
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION  6,304  -
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES  5,733  6,676
    TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,387,709  1,392,844

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
PREFERRED STOCK (NO PAR VALUE; AUTHORIZED 500,000 SHARES;     
  ISSUED 21,513 SHARES AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 28,685 AT     
  DECEMBER 31, 2009; LIQUIDATION PREFERENCE OF $1,000 PER SHARE)  20,746  27,359
COMMON STOCK (NO PAR VALUE; STATED VALUE $0.83 PER SHARE;  
  AUTHORIZED 21,000,000 SHARES; ISSUED SHARES, 9,199,038 AT  
  DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 9,131,666 AT DECEMBER 31, 2009;  
  OUTSTANDING SHARES, 8,790,860 AT DECEMBER 31, 2010  
  AND 8,723,488 AT DECEMBER 31, 2009)  7,650  7,593
SURPLUS  95,586  95,021
TREASURY STOCK AT COST (408,178 SHARES AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009)  (8,988)  (8,988)
RETAINED EARNINGS  4,693  471
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF INCOME TAX BENEFIT  (1,971)  (1,947)
    TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  117,716  119,509
    TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 1,505,425 $ 1,512,353

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)  2010  2009  2008

INTEREST INCOME      
INTEREST AND FEES ON LOANS $ 50,455 $ 54,978 $ 58,771
INTEREST ON INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY:      
  TAXABLE  2,037  1,383  2,166
  TAX-EXEMPT  467  905  917
INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS ON SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE:      
  TAXABLE  7,278  8,012  8,895
  TAX-EXEMPT  535  639  916
INTEREST ON FEDERAL FUNDS SOLD  1  -  116
INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS  149  90  136
    TOTAL INTEREST INCOME  60,922  66,007  71,917

INTEREST EXPENSE      
INTEREST ON CHECKING ACCOUNTS  1,586  1,476  1,096
INTEREST ON SAVINGS AND MONEY MARKET ACCOUNTS  3,908  4,830  8,504
INTEREST ON CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT OVER $100,000  1,620  4,331  6,094
INTEREST ON OTHER CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT  2,666  5,654  8,232
INTEREST ON OVERNIGHT  AND SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS  -  2  217
INTEREST ON FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES  1,046  1,366  1,454
INTEREST ON CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION  206  -  -
    TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE  11,032  17,659  25,597
     NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE PROVISION  
        FOR LOAN LOSSES  49,890  48,348  46,320
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  10,000  9,700  2,400
     NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION  
        FOR LOAN LOSSES  39,890  38,648  43,920

OTHER INCOME      
TRUST FEES  9,901  9,428  10,538
SERVICE CHARGES AND FEES  2,798  2,472  2,472
BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE  863  886  1,115
GAIN ON LOANS SOLD  1,041  657  137
OTHER INCOME  329  286  120
OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY IMPAIRMENT LOSS:      
   TOTAL IMPAIRMENT CHARGES ON SECURITIES  (941)  -  (56,146)
   LOSS RECOGNIZED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  -  -  -
     NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS RECOGNIZED IN EARNINGS  (941)  -  (56,146)
SECURITIES GAINS, NET  124  69  483
    TOTAL OTHER INCOME  14,115  13,798  (41,281)

OPERATING EXPENSES      
SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  22,529  21,877  20,586
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  9,624  8,803  8,470
FDIC INSURANCE   2,322  3,309  563
PROFESSIONAL AND LEGAL FEES  1,505  1,584  1,462
OTHER EXPENSES  7,130  6,693  6,204
  TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES  43,110  42,266  37,285
INCOME/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  10,895  10,180  (34,646)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT)  3,231  3,054  (12,586)
  NET INCOME/(LOSS)  7,664  7,126  (22,060)
DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK AND ACCRETION  1,686  1,493  -
  NET INCOME/(LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 5,978 $ 5,633 $ (22,060)

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE      
  BASIC $ 0.68 $ 0.64 $ (2.53)
  DILUTED  0.68  0.64  (2.53)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN 
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
            ACCUMULATED  
            OTHER  
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT  PREFERRED  COMMON    TREASURY  RETAINED  COMPREHENSIVE

  PER SHARE DATA)  STOCK  STOCK  SURPLUS  STOCK  EARNINGS  INCOME/(LOSS)  TOTAL

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2008              
  8,719,710 SHARES OUTSTANDING $ - $ 7,148 $ 90,677 $ (6,255) $ 21,750 $ (5,891) $ 107,429
CUMULATIVE EFFECT ADJUSTMENT             
  RESULTING FROM THE ADOPTION OF              
  ASC 715-60          (449)    (449)
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2008,             
  AS ADJUSTED $ - $ 7,148 $ 90,677 $ (6,255) $ 21,301 $ (5,891) $ 106,980
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS:              
  NET LOSS 2008          (22,060)    (22,060)
  UNREALIZED HOLDING LOSSES ON              
    SECURITIES ARISING DURING THE              
    PERIOD (NET OF INCOME              
    TAX BENEFIT OF $17,497)            (33,065)  
  LESS: RECLASSIFICATION              
    ADJUSTMENT FOR LOSSES              
    INCLUDED IN NET INCOME              
    (NET OF INCOME TAX BENEFIT              
    OF $19,482)            (36,181)  
  NET UNREALIZED HOLDING               
    GAINS ON SECURITIES ARISING              
    DURING THE PERIOD (NET OF              
    INCOME TAX EXPENSE OF $1,985)            3,116  3,116
  PENSION COSTS (NET OF INCOME TAX            
    EXPENSE OF $875)            1,267      1,267
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS              (17,677)
DIVIDENDS DECLARED ON COMMON              
  STOCK ($0.64 PER SHARE)          (5,307)    (5,307)
COMMON STOCK OPTION EXPENSE      347        347
COMMON STOCK OPTIONS              
EXERCISED AND RELATED              
  TAX BENEFITS, 53,846 SHARES    42  1,145    3    1,190
TREASURY STOCK TRANSACTIONS,              
  69,243 SHARES        (1,639)      (1,639)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2008              
  8,704,313 SHARES OUTSTANDING $ - $ 7,190 $ 92,169 $ (7,894) $ (6,063) $ (1,508) $ 83,894
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY - CONTINUED 
    ACCUMULATED 
            OTHER  
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT  PREFERRED  COMMON    TREASURY  RETAINED  COMPREHENSIVE

  PER SHARE DATA)  STOCK  STOCK  SURPLUS  STOCK  EARNINGS  INCOME/(LOSS)  TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:              
  NET INCOME 2009          7,126    7,126
  UNREALIZED  HOLDING GAINS ON              
     SECURITIES ARISING DURING THE              
     PERIOD, NET OF AMORTIZATION              
     (NET OF INCOME TAX EXPENSE              
     OF $1,853)            2,706  
  LESS: RECLASSIFICATION              
    ADJUSTMENT FOR GAINS              
    INCLUDED IN NET INCOME (NET              
    OF INCOME TAX EXPENSE OF $24)                     45  
  NET UNREALIZED HOLDING GAINS              
    ON SECURITIES ARISING DURING              
    THE PERIOD (NET OF INCOME TAX              
    EXPENSE OF $1,829)            2,661       2,661
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME              9,787
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE              
  OF PREFERRED STOCKS AND              
  WARRANT, 28,685 SHARES  27,084    1,601        28,685
ACCRETION OF DISCOUNT ON              
   PREFERRED STOCK  275        (275)    -
COSTS RELATED TO ISSUANCE OF              
   PREFERRED STOCK      (112)        (112)
CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED ON              
   COMMON STOCK              
  ($0.26 PER SHARE)          (2,199)    (2,199)
COMMON STOCK DIVIDEND,              
   5 PERCENT, 434,272 SHARES    346  (346)        -
CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED ON              
   PREFERRED STOCK          (1,218)    (1,218)
COMMON STOCK OPTION EXPENSE      343        343
COMMON STOCK OPTIONS              
   EXERCISED AND RELATED TAX              
   BENEFITS, 63,921 SHARES    51  1,266        1,317
ISSUANCE OF SHARES (DIVIDEND              
   REINVESTMENT PROGRAM),              
   7,581 SHARES    6  100        106
ADJUSTMENT TO INITIALLY APPLY              
   “RECOGNITION AND PRESENTATION             
   OF OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY              
   IMPAIRMENTS” UNDER               
   ASC 320-10-65 (NET OF INCOME              
   TAX BENEFIT OF $1,669)          3,100  (3,100)  -
INCREASE IN TREASURY SHARES              
   ASSOCIATED WITH COMMON               
   STOCK OPTIONS EXERCISED,               
   52,327 SHARES        (1,094)      (1,094)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2009              
  8,723,488 COMMON SHARES  
  OUTSTANDING $ 27,359 $ 7,593 $ 95,021 $ (8,988) $ 471 $ (1,947) $ 119,509
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            ACCUMULATED  
            OTHER  
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT  PREFERRED  COMMON    TREASURY  RETAINED  COMPREHENSIVE

  PER SHARE DATA)  STOCK  STOCK  SURPLUS  STOCK  EARNINGS  INCOME/(LOSS)  TOTAL

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:              
  NET INCOME 2010          7,664    7,664
  UNREALIZED  HOLDING LOSSES ON              
     SECURITIES ARISING DURING THE              
     PERIOD, NET OF AMORTIZATION              
     (NET OF INCOME TAX BENEFIT              
     OF $342)            (252)  
  LESS: RECLASSIFICATION              
    ADJUSTMENT FOR LOSSES              
    INCLUDED IN NET INCOME (NET              
    OF INCOME TAX BENEFIT OF $286)                                      (228)  
  NET UNREALIZED HOLDING LOSSES             
    ON SECURITIES ARISING DURING              
    THE PERIOD (NET OF INCOME TAX             
    BENEFIT OF $56)            (24)      (24)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME              7,640
ISSUANCE OF RESTRICTED STOCK,  
     55,993 SHARES    47  (47)        -
AMORTIZATION OF RESTRICTED  
   STOCK      150        150
REDEMPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK,               
   7,172 SHARES  (7,172)            (7,172)
ACCRETION OF DISCOUNT ON               
   PREFERRED STOCK  559        (559)    -
CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED ON              
   COMMON STOCK              
     ($0.20 PER SHARE)          (1,757)    (1,757)
CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED ON              
   PREFERRED STOCK          (1,126)    (1,126)
COMMON STOCK OPTION EXPENSE      332        332
SALES OF SHARES (DIVIDEND              
   REINVESTMENT PROGRAM),  
     11,379 SHARES    10  130        140
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010               
  8,790,860 COMMON SHARES  
  OUTSTANDING $ 20,746 $ 7,650 $ 95,586 $ (8,988) $ 4,693 $ (1,971) $ 117,716
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:      
NET INCOME/(LOSS) $ 7,664 $ 7,126 $ (22,060)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCOME/(LOSS) TO NET CASH       
  PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:      
DEPRECIATION  3,146  2,433  2,274
AMORTIZATION OF PREMIUM AND ACCRETION OF DISCOUNT ON      
  SECURITIES, NET  723  39  144
AMORTIZATION OF RESTRICTED STOCK  150  -  -
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  10,000  9,700  2,400
PROVISION FOR OREO  -  640  -
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE  332  343  347
DEFERRED TAX BENEFIT  (2,148)  (539)  (19,615)
EXCESS TAX BENEFIT FROM EXERCISE OF STOCK OPTIONS  -  (292)  (289)
IMPAIRMENT CHARGES ON SECURITIES  941  -  56,146
GAIN ON SALE OF SECURITIES, NET  (124)  (69)  (483)
PROCEEDS FROM SALES OF LOANS  74,347  51,027  12,340
LOANS ORIGINATED FOR SALE  (73,306)  (50,370)  (12,203)
GAIN ON LOANS SOLD  (1,041)  (657)  (137)
LOSS/(GAIN) ON OREO SOLD  18  (16)  -
LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  -  13  153
INCREASE IN CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE  (782)  (812)  (1,006)
DISTRIBUTION OF PENSION LIABILITY  -  -  (3,112)
DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE  213  (327)  1,005
DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN OTHER ASSETS  2,556  (9,794)  (1,815)
DECREASE IN ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES  (736)  (643)  (1,015)
    NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES  21,953  7,802  13,074

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:      
PROCEEDS FROM MATURITIES OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES   
   HELD TO MATURITY   23,111  20,572  13,216
PROCEEDS FROM MATURITIES OF SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE   43,705  37,290  46,746
PROCEEDS FROM CALLS OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY  48,158  1,003  593
PROCEEDS FROM SALES AND CALLS OF SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  172,929  2,058  36,120
PURCHASE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY  (122,770)  (60,010)  (9,195)
PURCHASE OF SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE, INCLUDING FHLB   
   AND FRB STOCK  (219,474)  (133,475)  (82,545)
PURCHASE OF LOANS  (943)  -  -
NET DECREASE/(INCREASE) IN LOANS  38,550  63,249  (73,738)
PROCEEDS FROM SALES OF OTHER REAL ESTATE  865  574  513
PURCHASES OF PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  (2,958)  (3,423)  (3,159)
PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT  -  2  32
PURCHASE OF LIFE INSURANCE   -  -  (5,000)
    NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (18,827)  (72,160)  (76,417)
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 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
NET INCREASE IN DEPOSITS  1,877  111,781  57,621
NET DECREASE IN OVERNIGHT BORROWINGS  -  (15,250)  (400)
PROCEEDS FROM FHLB ADVANCES  -  -  12,000
REPAYMENTS OF FHLB ADVANCES  (12,373)  (3,249)  (1,421)
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF PREFERRED STOCK AND WARRANTS  -  28,685  -
REDEMPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK  (7,172)  -  -
ISSUANCE COSTS OF PREFERRED STOCK  -  (112)  -
DIVIDENDS PAID ON PREFERRED STOCK  (1,126)  (1,218)  -
DIVIDENDS PAID ON COMMON STOCK  (1,757)  (3,525)  (5,307)
TAX BENEFIT ON STOCK OPTION EXERCISES  -  292  289
EXERCISE OF STOCK OPTIONS  -  1,025  902
SALE OF COMMON SHARES (DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PROGRAM)  140  106  -
TREASURY STOCK TRANSACTIONS  -  (1,094)  (1,639)
    NET CASH (USED IN)/PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (20,411)  117,441  62,045
    NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (17,285)  53,083  (1,298)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR  79,972  26,889  28,187
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 62,687 $ 79,972 $ 26,889

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW  
INFORMATION CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR:      
  INTEREST $ 11,557 $ 19,090 $ 28,809
  INCOME TAXES  5,164  5,098  8,987
TRANSFER OF SECURITIES FROM AVAILABLE FOR SALE TO  
   HELD TO MATURITY  -  -  48,429
TRANSFER OF LOANS TO OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED  4,523  347  1,731
ACQUISITION OF LEASED PREMISES  6,097  -  -

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS      
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION AND ORGANIZATION:  The consolidated financial statements of Peapack-
Gladstone Financial Corporation (the “Corporation”) are prepared on the accrual basis and include the 
accounts of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Peapack-Gladstone Bank (“the Bank”). 
The consolidated statements also include the Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Peapack-Gladstone 
Mortgage Group, Inc., which was liquidated into the Bank on December 31, 2010. During 2009, the 
Bank closed its subsidiary, Peapack-Gladstone Investment Company. While the following footnotes 
include the collective results of Peapack-Gladstone Financial Corporation and Peapack-Gladstone 
Bank, these footnotes primarily reflect the Bank’s and its subsidiaries’ activities. All significant 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated from the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements.

BUSINESS:  Peapack-Gladstone Bank, the subsidiary of the Corporation, provides a full range of banking 
and trust services to individual and corporate customers through its branch operations in central New 
Jersey. The Bank is subject to competition from other financial institutions, is regulated by certain 
federal and state agencies and undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities.

BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION:  The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. In preparing the financial 
statements, Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of 
the statement of condition and revenues and expenses for that period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.  

USE OF ESTIMATES: To prepare financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles, Management makes estimates and assumptions based on available information. 
These estimates and assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the disclo-
sures provided, and actual results could differ. The allowance for loan losses and judgments about the 
other-than-temporary impairment of securities are particularly subject to change.

SEGMENT INFORMATION:  The Corporation’s business is conducted through its banking subsidiary and 
involves the delivery of loan and deposit products and trust services to customers. Management uses 
certain methodologies to allocate income and expense to the business segments.

The Banking segment includes commercial, commercial real estate, residential and consumer 
lending activities; deposit generation; operation of ATMs; telephone and internet banking services; 
merchant credit card services and customer support sales.

PGB Trust & Investments includes asset management services provided for individuals and insti-
tutions; personal trust services, including services as executor, trustee, administrator, custodian and 
guardian; corporate trust services including services as trustee for pension and profit sharing plans; 
and other financial planning and advisory services.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:  For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash and due from banks, interest-earning deposits and federal funds sold. Generally, federal 
funds are sold for one-day periods. Net cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transac-
tions and federal funds purchased and overnight funds.

INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS IN OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS: Interest-earning deposits in other 
financial institutions mature within one year and are carried at cost.
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SECURITIES:  Debt securities are classified as held to maturity and carried at amortized cost when 
management has the positive intent and ability to hold them to maturity. Debt securities are classified 
as available for sale when they might be sold before maturity. Equity securities with readily deter-
minable fair values are classified as available for sale. Securities available for sale are carried at fair 
value, with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income, net of tax.

Interest income includes amortization of purchase premium or discount. Premiums and discounts 
on securities are amortized on the level-yield method without anticipating prepayments, except for 
mortgage-backed securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gains and losses on sales are recorded 
on the trade date and determined using the specific identification method.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on at least a quarterly basis, 
and more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation. For securities 
in an unrealized loss position, Management considers the extent and duration of the unrealized loss 
and the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer.  Management also assesses whether 
it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell, a security in an unrealized 
loss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or 
requirement to sell is met, the entire difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized 
as impairment through earnings. For debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the 
amount of impairment is split into two components as follows: 1) other-than-temporary impairment 
related to credit loss, which must be recognized in the income statement and 2) other-than-temporary 
impairment related to other factors, which is recognized in other comprehensive income.  The credit 
loss is defined as the difference between the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected 
and the amortized cost basis. For equity securities, the entire amount of impairment is recognized 
through earnings.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK (FHLB) AND FEDERAL RESERVE BANK (FRB) STOCK:  The Bank is a 
member of the FHLB system. Members are required to own a certain amount of stock, based on the 
level of borrowings and other factors. FHLB stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security 
and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value. Cash dividends are 
reported as income.

The Bank is also a member of the Federal Reserve Bank and required to own a certain amount of stock. 
FRB stock is carried at cost and classified as a restricted security. Cash dividends are reported as income.

LOANS HELD FOR SALE:  Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are 
carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value, as determined by outstanding commitments from 
investors.  Net unrealized losses, if any, are recorded as a valuation allowance and charged to earnings.

Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with servicing rights released; therefore, no servicing 
rights are recorded. Gains and losses on sales of mortgage loans are based on the difference between 
the selling price and the carrying value of the related loan sold.

LOANS:  Loans are stated at the principal amount outstanding. Interest on loans is recognized based 
upon the principal amount outstanding. Loans are stated at face value, less unearned income and net 
deferred fees. Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and recognized 
over the life of the loan as an adjustment, on a level-yield method, to the loan’s yield. The definition of 
recorded investment in loans includes accrued interest receivable, however, for the Corporation’s loan 
disclosures, accrued interest was excluded as the impact was not material.

Loans are considered past due when they are not paid in accordance with contractual terms. The 
accrual of income on loans, including impaired loans, is discontinued if, in the opinion of Management, 
principal or interest is not likely to be paid in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement, or when 
principal or interest is past 90 days or more and collateral, if any, is insufficient to cover principal and 
interest. All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest 
income. A non-accrual loan is returned to accrual status only when interest and principal payments are 
brought current and future payments are reasonably assured. Commercial loans are generally charged 
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off after an analysis is completed which indicates that collectability of the full principal balance is in 
doubt. Consumer loans are generally charged off after they become 120 days past due. Subsequent 
payments are credited to income only if collection of principal is not in doubt. If principal and interest 
payments are brought contractually current and future collectability is reasonably assured, loans are 
returned to accrual status. Mortgage loans are generally charged off when the value of the underlying 
collateral does not cover the outstanding principal balance. The majority of the Corporation’s loans are 
secured by real estate in the State of New Jersey.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES:  The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable 
incurred credit losses. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when Management believes 
the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the 
allowance. Management estimates the allowance balance required using past loan loss experience, 
the nature and volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated 
collateral values, economic conditions and other factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made 
for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in Management’s judgment, 
should be charged off.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component of the 
allowance relates to loans that are individually classified as impaired. 

A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Corporation 
will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. 
Loans for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the borrower 
is experiencing financial difficulties, are considered troubled debt restructurings and are evaluated for 
impairment. Factors considered by Management in determining impairment include payment status, 
collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. 
Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified 
as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on 
a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the 
borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment 
record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. 

All loans are individually evaluated for impairment when loans are classified as substandard by 
Management. If a loan is considered impaired, a portion of the allowance is allocated so that the loan 
is reported, net, at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s existing rate or at 
the fair value of collateral less estimated disposition costs if repayment is expected solely from the 
collateral. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, such as consumer and residential real 
estate loans, are collectively evaluated for impairment while they are performing assets. If and when 
a residential mortgage is placed on nonaccrual status and in the process of collection, such as through 
a foreclosure action then they are evaluated for impairment on an individual basis and the loan is 
reported, net, at the fair value of the collateral less estimated disposition costs.

A troubled debt restructuring is a renegotiated loan with concessions made by the lender to a 
borrower who is experiencing financial difficulty. Troubled debt restructurings are separately identified 
for impairment and are measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows using the loan’s 
effective rate at inception. If a troubled debt restructuring is considered to be a collateral dependent 
loan, the loan is reported, net, at the fair value of the collateral, less estimated disposition costs.  For 
troubled debt restructurings that subsequently default, the Corporation determines the amount of 
reserve in accordance with the accounting policy for the allowance for loan losses.

The general component of the allowance covers non-impaired loans and is based primarily on the 
Bank’s historical loss experience adjusted for current factors.  The historical loss experience is deter-
mined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual loss history experienced by the Corporation 
on a weighted average basis over the previous two years.  This actual loss experience is adjusted 
by other qualitative factors based on the risks present for each portfolio segment.  These economic 
factors include consideration of the following:  levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired 
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loans; levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends in volume and terms of loans; effects 
of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other changes in lending policies, proce-
dures, and practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; 
national and local economic trends and conditions; industry conditions; and effects of changes in 
credit concentrations.

In determining an appropriate amount for the allowance, the Bank segments and evaluates the loan 
portfolio based on Federal call report codes. The following portfolio segments have been identified (all 
amounts as of December 31, 2010):

a) Primary Residential Mortgage – The Bank had $433.0 million of loans secured by primary resi-
dential mortgages of which $416.7 million were conventional 1-4 family residential mortgage 
loans and the balance were either commercial loans or other consumer purpose loan secured 
by a mortgage. The Bank retains in its portfolio most conventional mortgage loans that have 
maturities of 15 years or less and sells all loans with maturities greater than 15 years. The Bank 
does not engage in sub-prime lending.

b) Home Equity Lines of Credit – The Bank had $45.8 million outstanding under home equity lines 
of credit, representing approximately 40 percent of the aggregate committed line amounts of 
$115.0 million.

c) Junior Lien Loan on Residence – There were $15.4 million of loans secured by junior liens on 
residences of which 78.5 percent were for consumer purposes and the remaining 21.5 percent 
were for commercial business purposes.

d) Multifamily Property – The Bank had $41.0 million of loans secured by apartment buildings.

e) Owner Occupied Commercial Real Estate – The Bank had $117.7 million of loans secured by 
primary commercial mortgages where the borrower used all or a majority of the property to 
conduct its own business or the business of a related entity.

f) Investment Commercial Real Estate – The Bank had $215.6 million of loans secured by primary 
commercial mortgages where all or most of the property was not being used by the borrower or 
a related entity. These properties consist of office buildings, retail stores, warehouses and mixed-
use properties. 

g) Commercial and Industrial – There were $27.8 million of loans to business entities which were 
secured by the assets of the business.

h) Commercial Construction – The Bank had $25.4 million of construction loans for the devel-
opment of commercial projects such as office buildings, retail shopping centers and apartments. 
There were unfunded commitments of $1.3 million still remaining.

i) Consumer and Other – The Bank had $10.7 million of consumer loans, loans to government 
entities and loans to not-for-profit entities.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT:  Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accu-
mulated depreciation. Depreciation charges are computed using the straight-line method. Equipment 
and other fixed assets are depreciated over the estimated useful lives, which range from three to ten 
years. Premises are depreciated over the estimated useful life of 40 years, while leasehold improve-
ments are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the term 
of the lease. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. The cost of major 
renewals and improvements are capitalized. Gains or losses realized on routine dispositions are 
recorded as other income or other expense.  

OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED:  Other real estate owned is initially carried at fair value, based on an 
independent appraisal, less costs to sell. When a property is acquired, the excess of the loan balance 
over the estimated fair value is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Any subsequent write-downs 
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that may be required to the carrying value of the properties or losses on the sale of properties are 
charged to the provision for other real estate owned and to operating expense. Operating costs after 
acquisition are expensed.

BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE (BOLI):  The Bank has purchased life insurance policies on certain 
key executives. BOLI is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the 
balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amounts due 
that are probable at settlement.

LOAN COMMITMENTS AND RELATED FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: Financial instruments include off-balance 
sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued 
to meet customer financing needs.  The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, 
before considering customer collateral or ability to repay.  Such financial instruments are recorded 
when they are funded.  Instruments, such as standby letters of credit, that are considered financial guar-
antees are recorded at fair value at inception.  

INCOME TAXES:  The Corporation files a consolidated Federal income tax return. Separate state income 
tax returns are filed for each subsidiary based on current laws and regulations.

The Corporation recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax conse-
quences of events that have been included in its financial statements or tax returns. The measurement 
of deferred tax assets and liabilities is based on the enacted tax rates. Such tax assets and liabilities are 
adjusted for the effect of a change in tax rates in the period of enactment. 

The Corporation recognizes a tax position as a benefit only if it is “more likely than not” that the tax 
position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The 
amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized 
on examination. For tax positions not meeting the “more likely than not” test, no tax benefit is recorded.

The Corporation is no longer subject to examination by the U.S. Federal tax authorities for years prior 
to 2007 or by New Jersey tax authorities for years prior to 2006. In 2008, the Corporation was audited by 
the U.S. Federal tax authorities for the 2006 tax year. No changes to the tax return were made.

The Corporation recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.

BENEFIT PLANS: The Corporation had a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its 
salaried employees, which was discontinued on May 12, 2008 and is more fully described in Note 11. 
The Plan was terminated and substantially all benefits were paid to employees during September 2008. 
Contributions totaling $2.1 million were made during 2008 and no further contributions are expected. 
The Corporation amended its existing 401(K) profit-sharing and investment plan to enhance the contri-
butions to its salaried employees starting in May 2008.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION: Compensation cost is recognized for stock options and restricted stock 
awards issued to employees and non-employee directors, based on the fair value of these awards at the 
date of grant. A Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value of stock options, while the 
market price of the Corporation’s common stock at the date of grant is used for restricted stock awards. 
Compensation expense is recognized over the required service period, generally defined as the vesting 
period. For awards with graded vesting, compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis 
over the requisite service period for the entire award. The stock options granted under these plans are 
exercisable at a price equal to the fair market value of common stock on the date of grant and expire 
not more than ten years after the date of grant.

EARNINGS PER SHARE:  In calculating earnings per share, there are no adjustments to net income 
available to common shareholders, which is the numerator of both the Basic and Diluted EPS. The 
weighted average number of shares outstanding used in the denominator for Diluted EPS is increased 
over the denominator used for Basic EPS by the effect of potentially dilutive common stock equivalents 
utilizing the treasury stock method. Common stock options outstanding are common stock equivalents, 
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while restricted stock is considered issued and outstanding when granted. Earnings and dividends per 
share are restated for all stock splits and stock dividends through the date of issuance of the financial 
statements.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE CALCULATION OF BOTH BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008:
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)  2010  2009  2008
NET INCOME/(LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 5,978 $ 5,633 $ (22,060)
BASIC WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING  8,784,655  8,715,419  8,707,327
PLUS:  COMMON STOCK EQUIVALENTS  366  50,838  -
DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING  8,785,021  8,766,257  8,707,327
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE:      
   BASIC $ 0.68 $ 0.64 $ (2.53)

   DILUTED  0.68  0.64  (2.53)

Stock options averaging 583,665, 478,901 and 396,153 shares were not considered in computing 
diluted earnings per share for 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, because they were antidilutive. The 
warrant issued to the U.S. Treasury for 150,296 common shares was also not considered in computing 
diluted earnings per share for 2010 and 2009 because it was antidilutive.

LOSS CONTINGENCIES:  Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary 
course of business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or 
range of loss can be reasonably estimated.  Management does not believe there now are such matters 
that will have a material effect on the financial statements.

RESTRICTIONS ON CASH:  Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank was required to 
meet regulatory reserve and clearing requirements.  

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:  Comprehensive income consists of net income and the change during the 
period in net unrealized gains or losses on securities available for sale, net of tax, and the change in 
the pension benefit obligation, net of tax. It is presented in the consolidated statements of changes in 
shareholders’ equity.

EQUITY:  Stock dividends in excess of 20 percent are reported by transferring the par value of the stock 
issued from retained earnings to common stock. Stock dividends for 20 percent or less are reported 
by transferring the fair value, as of the ex-dividend date, of the stock issued from retained earnings 
to common stock and additional paid-in capital. Fractional share amounts are paid in cash with a 
reduction in retained earnings. On June 18, 2009, a five percent stock dividend was declared. All prior 
share information has been restated for the stock dividend. Treasury stock is carried at cost.

RECLASSIFICATION:  Certain reclassifications have been made in the prior periods’ financial statements 
in order to conform to the 2010 presentation.

NEW ACCOUNTING POLICIES: ASU No. 2010-06, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) 
– Improving Disclosures About Fair Value Measurements,” requires expanded disclosures related to fair 
value measurements including (i) the amounts of significant transfers of assets or liabilities between 
Levels 1 and 2 of the fair value hierarchy and the reasons for the transfers, (ii) the reasons for transfers 
of assets or liabilities in or out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, with significant transfers disclosed 
separately, (iii) the policy for determining when transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are 
recognized and (iv) for recurring fair value measurements of assets and liabilities in Level 3 of the fair 
value hierarchy, a gross presentation of information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements. 
ASU 2010-06 further clarifies that (i) fair value measurement disclosures should be provided for each 
class of assets and liabilities (rather than major category), which would generally be a subset of assets 
or liabilities within a line item in the statement of financial position and (ii) companies should provide 
disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for both recurring 
and nonrecurring fair value measurements for each class of assets and liabilities included in Levels 2 
and 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The disclosures related to the gross presentation of purchases, sales, 
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issuances and settlements of assets and liabilities included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy will be 
required for the Corporation beginning January 1, 2011. The remaining disclosure requirements and 
clarifications made by ASU 2010-06 became effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2010.

ASU No. 2010-11, “Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) – Scope Exception Related to Embedded 
Credit Derivatives,” clarifies that the only form of an embedded credit derivative that is exempt from 
embedded derivative bifurcation requirements are those that relate to the subordination of one financial 
instrument to another. As a result, entities that have contracts containing an embedded credit derivative 
feature in a form other than such subordination may need to separately account for the embedded credit 
derivative feature. The provisions of ASU 2010-11 became effective for the Corporation on July 1, 
2010 and did not have a significant impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

ASU No. 2010-20, “Receivables (Topic 310) – Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing 
Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses,” requires entities to provide disclosures designed 
to facilitate financial statement users’ evaluation of (i) the nature of credit risk inherent in the entity’s 
portfolio of financing receivables, (ii) how that risk is analyzed and assessed in arriving at the allowance 
for credit losses and (iii) the changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for credit losses. 
Disclosures must be disaggregated by portfolio segment, the level at which an entity develops and 
documents a systematic method for determining its allowance for credit losses, and class of financing 
receivable, which is generally a disaggregation of portfolio segment. The required disclosures include, 
among other things, a rollforward of the allowance for credit losses as well as information about 
modified, impaired, non-accrual and past due loans and credit quality indicators. ASU 2010-20 became 
effective for the Corporation’s financial statements as of December 31, 2010, as it relates to disclo-
sures required as of the end of a reporting period. Disclosures that relate to activity during a reporting 
period will be required for the Corporation’s financial statements that include periods beginning on 
or after January 1, 2011. ASU 2011-01, “Receivables (Topic 310) – Deferral of the Effective Date 
of Disclosures about Troubled Debt Restructurings in Update No. 2010-20,” temporarily deferred the 
effective date for disclosures related to troubled debt restructurings to coincide with the effective date 
of a proposed accounting standards update related to troubled debt restructurings, which is currently 
expected to be effective for periods ending after June 15, 2011.

2.  INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY

A SUMMARY OF AMORTIZED COST AND APPROXIMATE FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY INCLUDED IN THE 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 FOLLOWS:
 2010 
    GROSS  GROSS  
  AMORTIZED  UNRECOGNIZED  UNRECOGNIZED  FAIR

(IN THOUSANDS)  COST  GAINS  LOSSES  VALUE

U.S. GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTITIES   $ 45,485 $ 11 $ (790) $ 44,706
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL   67,745  921  (494)  68,172
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS   17,671  184  (31)  17,824
TRUST PREFERRED POOLED SECURITIES   9,376  -  (1,640)  7,736
   TOTAL  $ 140,277 $ 1,116 $ (2,955) $ 138,438

 2009  
    GROSS  GROSS  
  AMORTIZED  UNRECOGNIZED  UNRECOGNIZED  FAIR

(IN THOUSANDS)  COST  GAINS  LOSSES  VALUE

U.S. GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTITIES $ 16,200 $ 13 $ (117) $ 16,096
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL  42,538  325  (18)  42,845
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS  20,646  361  -  21,007
TRUST PREFERRED POOLED SECURITIES  10,075  -  (2,196)  7,879
   TOTAL $ 89,459 $ 699 $ (2,331) $ 87,827
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The amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities held to maturity as of 
December 31, 2010, by contractual maturity, are shown below.  Expected maturities will differ from 
contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or repay obligations with or without 
call or prepayment penalties.  Securities not due at a single maturity date are shown separately.

MATURING IN:    
(IN THOUSANDS)  AMORTIZED COST  FAIR VALUE

ONE YEAR OR LESS $ 13,193 $ 13,210
AFTER ONE YEAR THROUGH FIVE YEARS  4,478  4,613
AFTER FIVE YEARS THROUGH TEN YEARS  23,816  23,407
AFTER TEN YEARS  21,669  21,300
  63,156  62,530
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL  67,745  68,172
TRUST PREFERRED POOLED SECURITIES  9,376  7,736

   TOTAL $ 140,277 $ 138,438

Securities held to maturity having an approximate carrying value of $12.7 million and $12.2 million 
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, were pledged to secure public funds and for other 
purposes required or permitted by law.

The trust preferred pooled securities within the Corporation’s held to maturity investment portfolio 
are collateralized by trust preferred securities issued primarily by individual bank holding companies, 
but also by insurance companies and real estate investment trusts.  There has been little or no active 
trading in these securities for several years; therefore the Corporation believes in most cases it is more 
appropriate to estimate fair value using discounted cash flow analysis.  As of December 31, 2008, to 
estimate fair value, and determine whether the securities were other-than-temporarily impaired, the 
Corporation retained and worked with a third party to review the issuers (the collateral) underlying 
each of the securities.  Among the factors analyzed were the issuers’ profitability, credit quality, asset 
mix, capital adequacy, leverage and liquidity position, as well as an overall assessment of credit, profit-
ability and capital trends within the portfolio’s issuer universe.  These factors provided an assessment 
of the portion of the collateral of each security which was likely to default in future periods.  The 
cash flows associated with the collateral likely to default, together with the cash flows associated with 
collateral which had already deferred or defaulted, were then eliminated.  In addition, the Corporation 
assumed constant rates of default in excess of those based upon the historic performance of the under-
lying collateral.  The resulting cash flows were then discounted to the current period to determine fair 
value for each security.  The discount rate utilized was based on a risk-free rate (LIBOR) plus spreads 
appropriate for the product, which include consideration of liquidity and credit uncertainty.

Each quarter during 2010 and 2009, to periodically assess the credit assumptions and related input 
data that could affect the fair value of each security, Management compared actual deferrals and 
defaults to the assumed deferrals and defaults included in the valuation model.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Corporation again worked with a third party to model 
the securities and review its valuation.  The modeling process and related assumptions were similar 
to the process and related assumptions employed as of December 31, 2008.  In 2010, as a result of 
this process additional impairment charges of $581 thousand were recorded on three trust preferred 
pooled securities for the year ended December 31, 2010, while no additional impairment charges were 
recorded for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Further significant downturns in the real estate markets and/or the economy could cause additional 
issuers to defer paying dividends on these securities and/or ultimately default. Such occurrences, if 
beyond those assumed in the current valuation, could cause an additional write-down of the portfolio, 
with a negative impact on earnings; however, the Corporation has already recorded a substantial write-
down of its trust preferred pooled securities portfolio. We do not expect that an additional write-down 
would have a material effect on the cash flows from the securities or on our liquidity position.
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At December 31, 2010, other-than-temporary impairment recognized in accumulated other compre-
hensive income totaled $3.1 million.

 THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE CORPORATION’S INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY WITH CONTINUOUS UNREALIZED 
LOSSES AND THE APPROXIMATE FAIR VALUE OF THESE INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009.
 2010
 DURATION OF UNRECOGNIZED LOSS

 LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR LONGER TOTAL

 APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE

  FAIR  UNRECOGNIZED  FAIR  UNRECOGNIZED  FAIR  UNRECOGNIZED

(IN THOUSANDS)  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES

U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED           
  ENTITIES $ 39,707 $ (790) $ - $ - $ 39,707 $ (790)
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES -           
  RESIDENTIAL  32,553  (494)  -  -  32,553  (494)
STATE AND POLITICAL  
   SUBDIVISIONS  9,667  (31)  -  -  9,667  (31)
TRUST PREFERRED POOLED  
   SECURITIES  -  -  1,782  (1,640)  1,782  (1,640)
    TOTAL $ 81,927 $ (1,315) $ 1,782 $ (1,640) $ 83,709 $ (2,955)

 
 2009
 DURATION OF UNRECOGNIZED LOSS

 LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR LONGER TOTAL

 APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE

  FAIR  UNRECOGNIZED  FAIR  UNRECOGNIZED  FAIR  UNRECOGNIZED

(IN THOUSANDS)  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES

U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED           
    ENTITIES $ 11,084 $ (117) $ - $ - $ 11,084 $ (117)
MORTGAGE-BACKED  SECURITIES - 
  RESIDENTIAL  9,633  (16)  19  (2)  9,652  (18)
TRUST PREFERRED POOLED  
  SECURITIES  1,258  (2,196)  -  -  1,258  (2,196)
    TOTAL $ 21,975 $ (2,329) $ 19 $ (2) $ 21,994 $ (2,331)

Management has determined that any unrecognized losses on the securities held to maturity at 
December 31, 2010, are temporary and due to interest rate fluctuations and/or volatile market condi-
tions, rather than the creditworthiness of the issuers.  The Corporation monitors creditworthiness of 
issuers periodically, including issuers of trust preferred securities on a quarterly basis.  The Corporation 
does not have the intent to sell these securities and it is likely that it will not be required to sell the 
securities before their anticipated recovery. All mortgage-backed securities were issued by U.S. 
government-sponsored agencies.
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 THE TABLE BELOW PRESENTS A ROLLFORWARD FOR THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 OF THE IMPAIRMENT 
CHARGES ON SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY DUE TO CREDIT IMPAIRMENT RECOGNIZED IN EARNINGS:
 TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES

(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009
BEGINNING BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 50,492 $ 55,262
ADJUSTMENT TO INITIALLY APPLY “RECOGNITION AND    
  PRESENTATION OF OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY    
  IMPAIRMENTS” UNDER ASC 320-10-65  -  (4,770)
  50,492  50,492
ADDITIONS TO CREDIT IMPAIRMENT ON SECURITIES FOR    
  WHICH NO PREVIOUS OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY    
  IMPAIRMENT WAS RECOGNIZED  -  -
INCREASES TO CREDIT IMPAIRMENT ON SECURITIES FOR    
  WHICH OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY IMPAIRMENT    
  WAS PREVIOUSLY RECOGNIZED  581  -
REDUCTIONS FOR PREVIOUS CREDIT IMPAIRMENT REALIZED     
  ON SECURITIES SOLD DURING THE PERIOD  -  -
REDUCTIONS FOR PREVIOUS CREDIT IMPAIRMENT RELATED     
  TO SECURITIES THE COMPANY NOW INTENDS TO SELL    
  OR WILL BE MORE LIKELY THAN NOT REQUIRED    
  TO SELL  -  -
REDUCTIONS FOR PREVIOUS CREDIT IMPAIRMENT DUE TO AN     
  INCREASE IN CASH FLOWS EXPECTED TO BE COLLECTED  -  -
ENDING BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 51,073 $ 50,492

3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE

A SUMMARY OF AMORTIZED COST AND APPROXIMATE FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE INCLUDED IN THE 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 FOLLOWS:
 2010 
    GROSS  GROSS  
  AMORTIZED  UNREALIZED  UNREALIZED  FAIR

(IN THOUSANDS)  COST  GAINS  LOSSES  VALUE

U.S. TREASURY AND U.S. GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTITIES $ 50,926 $ 209 $ - $ 51,135
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL  199,099  4,179  (1,188)  202,090
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS  16,418  243  (48)  16,613
OTHER SECURITIES  5,499  -  (999)  4,500
MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES  680  58  -  738
   TOTAL $ 272,622 $ 4,689 $ (2,235) $ 275,076

 
 2009  
    GROSS  GROSS  
  AMORTIZED  UNREALIZED  UNREALIZED  FAIR

(IN THOUSANDS)  COST  GAINS  LOSSES  VALUE

U.S. GOVERNMENT SPONSORED ENTITIES $ 129,748 $ 353 $ (117) $ 129,984
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL  113,926  4,114  (576)  117,464
STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS  18,830  304  (61)  19,073
OTHER SECURITIES  3,998  -  (952)  3,046
MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES  3,296  80  (459)  2,917
   TOTAL $ 269,798 $ 4,851 $ (2,165) $ 272,484
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The amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities available for sale as of 
December 31, 2010, by contractual maturity, are shown below.  Expected maturities will differ from 
contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or repay obligations with or without 
call or prepayment penalties.  Securities not due at a single maturity, such as mortgage-backed secu-
rities, marketable equity securities and the CRA Investment Fund (included in other securities), are 
shown separately.

MATURING IN:     
(IN THOUSANDS)  AMORTIZED COST  FAIR VALUE

ONE YEAR OR LESS $ 1,357 $ 1,377
AFTER ONE YEAR THROUGH FIVE YEARS  50,777  50,982
AFTER FIVE YEARS THROUGH TEN YEARS  4,275  4,445
AFTER TEN YEARS  14,934  13,945
  71,343  70,749
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL  199,099  202,090
CRA INVESTMENT FUND  1,500  1,499
MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES  680  738
   TOTAL $ 272,622 $ 275,076

Securities available for sale having an approximate carrying value of $17.7 million and $24.7 
million as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively, were pledged to secure public 
funds and for other purposes required or permitted by law. 

Proceeds on sales of securities totaled $10.3 million, $658 thousand and $7.6 million in 2010, 2009 
and 2008, respectively. Gross gains on sales of securities of $224 thousand, $144 thousand and $609 
thousand and gross losses on sales of securities of $100 thousand, $75 thousand and $117 thousand 
were realized in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. There were no non-monetary exchanges in 2010 
and 2009 but in 2008, the Corporation recognized $9 thousand in losses on the non-monetary exchange 
of equity securities. In 2010, the Corporation recognized a non-cash charge of $360 thousand related to 
an other-than-temporary impairment charge for seven equity securities with a cost of $1.1 million and 
in 2008, recognized a non-cash charge of $884 thousand related to an other-than-temporary impairment 
charge for one corporate bond and four equity securities with a cost of $1.3 million.  No other-than-
temporary impairment charges were recognized in 2009.
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE CORPORATION’S AVAILABLE FOR SALE SECURITIES WITH CONTINUOUS UNREALIZED LOSSES AND 
THE APPROXIMATE FAIR VALUE OF THESE INVESTMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009.
 2010
 DURATION OF UNREALIZED LOSS

 LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR LONGER TOTAL

 APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE

  FAIR  UNREALIZED  FAIR  UNREALIZED  FAIR  UNREALIZED

(IN THOUSANDS)  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES

U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED           
  ENTITIES $ 39,707 $ (790) $ - $ - $ 39,707 $ (790)
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES -            
  RESIDENTIAL $ 102,695 $ (984) $ 2,211 $ (204) $ 104,906 $ (1,188)
STATE AND POLITICAL  
  SUBDIVISIONS  777  (14)  446  (34)  1,223  (48)
OTHER SECURITIES  1,499  (1)  3,001  (998)  4,500  (999)
    TOTAL $ 104,971 $ (999) $ 5,658 $ (1,236) $ 110,629 $ (2,235)

 2009
 DURATION OF UNREALIZED LOSS

 LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR LONGER TOTAL

 APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE APPROXIMATE

  FAIR  UNREALIZED  FAIR  UNREALIZED  FAIR  UNREALIZED

(IN THOUSANDS)  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES  VALUE  LOSSES

U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED           
  ENTITIES $ 34,170 $ (117) $ - $ - $ 34,170 $ (117)
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES -           
  RESIDENTIAL  5,388  (69)  7,118  (507)  12,506  (576)
STATE AND POLITICAL  
  SUBDIVISIONS  980  (6)  720  (55)  1,700  (61)
OTHER SECURITIES  -  -  2,046  (952)  2,046  (952)
MARKETABLE EQUITY  
  SECURITIES  -  -  1,508  (459)  1,508  (459)
    TOTAL $ 40,538 $ (192) $ 11,392 $ (1,973) $ 51,930 $ (2,165)

Management believes that the unrealized losses on investment securities available for sale are 
temporary and due to interest rate fluctuations and/or volatile market conditions rather than the cred-
itworthiness of the issuers.  The Corporation does not intend to sell these securities nor is it likely that 
it will be required to sell the securities before their anticipated recovery; however, Management also 
closely monitors market conditions and may sell the securities if it determines it would be beneficial to 
do so.  

At December 31, 2010, the unrealized loss on the other securities is related to two single-issuer trust 
preferred securities. The largest portion of the unrealized loss, $908 thousand, is related to a security 
issued by a large bank holding company that has experienced declines in all its securities due to the 
turmoil in the financial markets and a merger. The security continues to be rated investment grade 
by Moody’s. Additionally, at December 31, 2010, the fair value of this security has improved from 
the fair value at December 31, 2009. It is not considered other-than-temporarily impaired. The other 
trust preferred security was issued by a large community bank that recorded a profit in its most recent 
reporting period and was considered well capitalized. It was determined that the credit risk associated 
with this security is minimal and that the unrealized loss is due to its type, as trust preferred securities 
remain out of favor with investors.
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4.  LOANS

LOANS OUTSTANDING, BY GENERAL LEDGER CLASSIFICATION, AS OF DECEMBER 31, CONSISTED OF THE FOLLOWING:
  % OF TOTAL    % OF TOTAL

(IN THOUSANDS) 2010 LOANS  2009  LOANS

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 419,653  45.0 % $ 452,641   46.0 %
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  288,183  30.9   279,595   28.4 
COMMERCIAL LOANS  131,408  14.1   120,554   12.3 
CONSTRUCTION LOANS  25,367  2.7   64,816   6.6 
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  45,775  4.9   38,728   3.9 
CONSUMER LOANS, INCLUDING          
   FIXED RATE HOME EQUITY LOANS  20,622  2.2   25,638   2.6 
OTHER LOANS  1,489  0.2   1,565   0.2 
   TOTAL LOANS $ 932,497  100.0 % $ 983,537   100.0 %

Included in residential mortgage loans in the table above are $3.1 million and $3.7 million of resi-
dential real estate loans held for sale as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Also, included in 
the totals above for December 31, 2010 are $1.4 million of unamortized discount and $2.3 million of 
deferred origination costs net of deferred origination fees as compared to $2.0 million of unamortized 
discount and $2.5 million of deferred origination costs net of deferred origination fees for December 
31, 2009.

In the ordinary course of business, the Corporation, through the Bank, may extend credit to officers, 
directors or their associates.  These loans are subject to the Corporation’s normal lending policy and 
Federal Reserve Bank Regulation O.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE CHANGES IN LOANS TO OFFICERS, DIRECTORS OR THEIR ASSOCIATES:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 3,192 $ 3,798
NEW LOANS  1,638  940
REPAYMENTS  (3,438)  (1,387)
LOANS WITH INDIVIDUALS NO LONGER CONSIDERED    
RELATED PARTIES  (209)  (159)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,183 $ 3,192

A SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES FOR THE YEARS INDICATED AS FOLLOWS:
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 13,192 $ 9,688 $ 7,500
PROVISION CHARGED TO EXPENSE  10,000  9,700  2,400
LOANS CHARGED-OFF  (9,166)  (6,277)  (239)
RECOVERIES  256  81  27
BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 14,282 $ 13,192 $ 9,688
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE LOAN BALANCES BY PORTFOLIO SEGMENT, BASED ON IMPAIRMENT METHOD, AND THE CORRE-
SPONDING BALANCES IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010:

 TOTAL  ENDING ALLL    ENDING ALLL    
 LOANS  ATTRIBUTABLE  TOTAL  ATTRIBUTABLE    
 INDIVIDUALLY  TO LOANS  LOANS   TO LOANS     
 EVALUATED  INDIVIDUALLY  COLLECTIVELY  COLLECTIVELY    TOTAL

 FOR  EVALUATED FOR  EVALUATED FOR  EVALUATED FOR  TOTAL  ENDING

(IN THOUSANDS) IMPAIRMENT  IMPAIRMENT  IMPAIRMENT  IMPAIRMENT  LOANS  ALLL
PRIMARY RESIDENTIAL           
  MORTGAGE $ 4,578 $ - $ 428,466 $ 1,502 $ 433,044 $ 1,502
HOME EQUITY LINES           
  OF CREDIT 85  -  45,730  160  45,815  160
JUNIOR LIEN LOAN ON RESIDENCE  537  -  14,981  228  15,518  228
MULTIFAMILY PROPERTY 691  26  40,327  277  41,018  303
OWNER-OCCUPIED            
  COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE 3,051  504  114,634  2,740  117,685  3,244
INVESTMENT COMMERCIAL           
  REAL ESTATE 11,900  1,141  203,692  3,151  215,592  4,292
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 2,330  308  25,448  2,411  27,778  2,719
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION 5,225  500  20,149  746  25,374  1,246
CONSUMER AND OTHER -  -  10,673  66  10,673  66
UNALLOCATED -  -  -  522  -  522
TOTAL ALLL $28,397 $ 2,479 $ 904,100 $ 11,803 $ 932,497 $ 14,282

IMPAIRED LOANS CONSISTED OF THE FOLLOWING AT DECEMBER 31, 
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009
LOANS WITH NO ALLOCATED ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES $ 5,200 $ 34,333
LOANS WITH ALLOCATED ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES  23,197  12,476
   TOTAL $ 28,397 $ 46,809
AMOUNT OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES ALLOCATED $ 2,479 $ 2,064
 
THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE TYPES OF IMPAIRED LOANS AT DECEMBER 31, 
    NUMBER OF    NUMBER OF

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)  2010  RELATIONSHIPS  2009  RELATIONSHIPS

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 4,578  12 $ 2,479  8
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  15,642  14  21,382  10
COMMERCIAL LOANS  2,330  7  5,426  12
CONSTRUCTION LOANS  5,225  2  17,437  2
CONSUMER LOANS  537  2  -  -
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  85  1  85  1
   TOTAL $ 28,397  38 $ 46,809  33
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Impaired loans include non-accrual loans of $18.1 million at December 31, 2010 and $11.3 million 
at December 31, 2009. Impaired loans also includes commercial mortgage troubled debt restructured 
loans of $5.2 million at December 31, 2010 and $6.9 million at December 31, 2009.  As of December 
31, 2010, impaired loans totaling $5.2 million have no specific reserves, while impaired loans totaling 
$23.2 million have specific reserves of $2.5 million.

At December 31, 2010, $28.4 million of the $41.9 million of loans classified as substandard were 
also considered impaired as compared to December 31, 2009, when all $46.8 million of substandard 
loans were considered impaired.

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS PRESENTED FOR LOANS CLASSIFIED AS IMPAIRED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
AVERAGE OF INDIVIDUALLY IMPAIRED LOANS DURING YEAR $ 21,469 $ 23,646 $ 7,574
INTEREST INCOME RECOGNIZED DURING IMPAIRMENT  822  1,116  419
CASH-BASIS INTEREST INCOME RECOGNIZED  822  1,116  419
 
THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS LOANS INDIVIDUALLY EVALUATED FOR IMPAIRMENT BY CLASS OF LOANS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010:
  UNPAID    
  PRINCIPAL  RECORDED  SPECIFIC

(IN THOUSANDS)  BALANCE  INVESTMENT  RESERVES

WITH NO RELATED ALLOWANCE RECORDED:      
PRIMARY RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 5,080 $ 4,578 $ -
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  100  85  -
JUNIOR LIEN LOAN ON RESIDENCE  660  537  -
CONSUMER AND OTHER LOANS  -  -  -
   TOTAL LOANS WITH NO RELATED ALLOWANCE $ 5,840 $ 5,200 $ -

WITH RELATED ALLOWANCE RECORDED:      
MULTIFAMILY PROPERTY $ 713 $ 691 $ 26
OWNER-OCCUPIED COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE  1,773  3,051  505
INVESTMENT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE  11,900  11,900  1,141
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL  3,007  2,330  307
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION  8,199  5,225  500
   TOTAL LOANS WITH RELATED ALLOWANCE  $ 25,592 $ 23,197 $ 2,479
   TOTAL LOANS INDIVIDUALLY EVALUATED FOR IMPAIRMENT $ 31,432 $ 28,397 $ 2,479
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE RECORDED INVESTMENT IN NONACCRUAL AND LOANS PAST DUE OVER 90 DAYS STILL ON 
ACCRUAL BY CLASS OF LOANS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010:
  LOANS PAST DUE OVER 
    90 DAYS AND

(IN THOUSANDS)  NONACCRUAL  STILL ACCRUING INTEREST

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 4,578 $ -
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  6,339  666
COMMERCIAL LOANS  1,750  -
CONSTRUCTION LOANS  5,225  -
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  85  -
CONSUMER LOANS  137  -
   TOTAL $ 18,114 $ 666

Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days still on accrual include both smaller balance 
homogeneous loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and individually classified impaired 
loans.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE AGING OF THE RECORDED INVESTMENT IN PAST DUE LOANS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 BY 
CLASS OF LOANS, EXCLUDING NONACCRUAL LOANS:
  30-59  60-89  GREATER THAN  
  DAYS  DAYS  90 DAYS  TOTAL

(IN THOUSANDS)  PAST DUE  PAST DUE  PAST DUE  PAST DUE

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 3,490 $ 162 $ - $ 3,652
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  1,548  -  666  2,214
COMMERCIAL LOANS  274  -  -  274
CONSTRUCTION LOANS  -  -  -  -
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  -  -  -  -
CONSUMER LOANS  1  -  -  1
   TOTAL $ 5,313 $ 162 $ 666 $ 6,141

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE TYPES OF TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURED LOANS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009.  THE 
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURED LOANS OF $5.2 MILLION AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 ARE ALL CONSIDERED 
AND INCLUDED IN IMPAIRED LOANS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010.  TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCTURED LOANS WERE PAYING IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH RESTRUCTURED TERMS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010.
    NUMBER OF    NUMBER OF

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)  2010  RELATIONSHIPS  2009  RELATIONSHIPS

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 1,425  8 $ 4,186  17
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  5,152  4  6,937  2
COMMERCIAL LOANS  580  3  -  -
   TOTAL $ 7,157  15 $ 11,123  19

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Corporation has allocated $268 thousand and $293 
thousand, respectively, of specific reserves to customers whose loan terms have been modified in 
troubled debt restructurings. The Corporation has not committed to lend additional amounts as of 
December 31, 2010 and 2009 to customers with outstanding loans that are classified as troubled debt 
restructurings.
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Credit Quality Indicators:  

The Corporation categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the 
ability of borrowers to service their debt such as:  current financial information, historical payment 
experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other 
factors.  The Corporation analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk.  This 
analysis includes all commercial loans with an outstanding balance of $150 thousand or more.  The risk 
rating analysis of loans is performed (i) when the loan is initially underwritten, (ii) annually for loans 
in excess of $500,000, (iii) on a random quarterly basis from either internal reviews with the Senior 
Credit Officer or externally through an independent loan review firm, or (iv) whenever management 
otherwise identifies a potentially negative trend or issue relating to a borrower. The Corporation uses 
the following definitions for risk ratings:

Special Mention:  Loans subject to special mention have a potential weakness that deserves manage-
ment’s close attention.  If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the 
repayment prospects for the loans or of the institution’s credit position at some future date.

Substandard:  Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth 
and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any.  Loans so classified have a well-
defined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt.  They are characterized by 
the distinct possibility that the institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful:  Loans classified as doubtful have all the weakness inherent in those classified as 
substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on 
the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as part of the above described 
process are considered to be pass rated loans.  Loans listed as not rated are either less than $150 
thousand or are included in groups of homogeneous loans.  

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010, AND BASED ON THE MOST RECENT ANALYSIS PERFORMED, THE RISK CATEGORY OF LOANS BY CLASS OF 
LOANS IS AS FOLLOWS:
    SPECIAL     
(IN THOUSANDS)  PASS  MENTION  SUBSTANDARD  DOUBTFUL

PRIMARY RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 422,972 $ 5,495 $ 4,578 $ -
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  45,730  -  85  -
JUNIOR LIEN LOAN ON RESIDENCE  14,877  104  537  -
MULTIFAMILY PROPERTY  39,709  166  1,142  -
OWNER-OCCUPIED COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE  89,136  14,722  13,827  -
INVESTMENT COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE  187,201  14,468  13,923  -
COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL  23,284  1,864  2,630  -
COMMERCIAL CONSTRUCTION  20,149  -  5,225  -
CONSUMER AND OTHER LOANS  10,673  -  -  -
    TOTAL $ 853,731 $ 36,819 $ 41,947 $ -

At December 31, 2010, $28.4 million of the $41.9 million of loans classified as substandard were 
also considered impaired as compared to December 31, 2009, when all $46.8 million of substandard 
loans were considered impaired.

The Corporation considers the performance of the loan portfolio and its impact on the allowance for 
loan losses.  For residential and consumer loans, the Corporation also evaluated credit quality based on 
the aging status of the loan, which was previously presented, and by payment activity.  
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE RECORDED INVESTMENT IN RESIDENTIAL AND CONSUMER LOANS BASED ON PAYMENT ACTIVITY 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010:
  PRIMARY    JUNIOR LIEN 
  RESIDENTIAL  HOME EQUITY  LOAN ON  
(IN THOUSANDS)  MORTGAGE  LINES OF CREDIT  RESIDENCE  OTHER CONSUMER

PERFORMING $ 421,195 $ 45,730 $ 12,032 $ 4,393
NON-PERFORMING  4,578  85  138  -
   TOTAL $ 425,773 $ 45,815 $ 12,170 $ 4,393

THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE TYPES OF NON-PERFORMING LOANS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009.  NON-PERFORMING 
LOANS OF $18.1 MILLION AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND $11.3 MILLION AT DECEMBER 31, 2009 ARE CONSIDERED AND INCLUDED IN 
IMPAIRED LOANS FOR THE SAME RESPECTIVE PERIODS.
    NUMBER OF    NUMBER OF 
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)  2010  RELATIONSHIPS  2009  RELATIONSHIPS

RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGE $ 4,578  12 $ 2,567  9
COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE  7,005  10  2,195  5
COMMERCIAL LOANS  1,750  4  1,698  4
CONSTRUCTION LOANS  5,225  2  5,035  1
HOME EQUITY LINES OF CREDIT  85  1  85  1
CONSUMER LOANS  137  1  172  1
   TOTAL $ 18,780  30 $ 11,752  21

5.  PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT AS OF DECEMBER 31, FOLLOWS:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009
LAND AND LAND IMPROVEMENTS $ 7,152 $ 7,152
BUILDINGS  14,660  14,642
FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT  19,346  18,867
LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS  8,970  9,134
PROJECTS IN PROGRESS  378  606
CAPITAL LEASE ASSET  6,097  -
  56,603  50,401
LESS:  ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  22,783  22,490
   TOTAL $ 33,820 $ 27,911

The Corporation recorded depreciation expense of $3.1 million, $2.4 million and $2.3 million for 
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Corporation leases its corporate headquarters building under a capital lease. The lease 
arrangement requires monthly payments through 2025. Related depreciation expense and accumulated 
depreciation of $267 thousand is included in 2010 results. 

6.  OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Corporation had other real estate owned totaling $4.0 million 
and $360 thousand, respectively. 

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE ACTIVITY IN OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 360 $ 1,211
OREO PROPERTIES ADDED  4,523  360
SALES DURING YEAR  (883)  (1,211)
BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 4,000 $ 360
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS THE ACTIVITY IN THE VALUATION ALLOWANCE FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ - $ - $ -
ADDITIONS CHARGED TO EXPENSE  -  640  -
DIRECT WRITEDOWNS  -  (640)  -
BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ - $ - $ -

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SHOWS EXPENSES RELATED TO FORECLOSED ASSETS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
NET LOSS/(GAIN) ON SALES $ 19 $ (16) $ 7
PROVISION FOR UNREALIZED LOSSES  -  640  -
OPERATING EXPENSES, NET OF RENTAL INCOME  28  132  191

   TOTAL  $ 47 $ 756 $ 198

7.  DEPOSITS

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SETS FORTH THE DETAILS OF TOTAL DEPOSITS:
(IN THOUSANDS) DECEMBER 31, 2010 DECEMBER 31, 2009
  $  %   $  % 
NONINTEREST-BEARING  DEMAND DEPOSITS $ 228,764  16.93 % $ 216,127  16.01 %
INTEREST-BEARING CHECKING  290,322  21.48   255,058  18.90 
SAVINGS  80,799  5.98   73,866  5.47 
MONEY MARKET  524,449  38.80   458,303  33.96 
CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT  227,212  16.81   346,315  25.66 
   TOTAL DEPOSITS $ 1,351,546  100.00 % $ 1,349,669  100.00 %

THE SCHEDULED MATURITIES OF TIME DEPOSITS ARE AS FOLLOWS:
(IN THOUSANDS)  
2011 $ 156,323
2012  21,465
2013  12,331
2014  17,550
2015  19,543
   TOTAL $ 227,212

8.  FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Advances from FHLB totaled $24.1 million and $36.5 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively, with a weighted average interest rate of 3.54 percent and 3.59 percent, respectively.

Advances totaling $4.0 million at December 31, 2010, have fixed maturity dates, while advances 
totaling $1.1 million were amortizing advances with monthly payments of principal and interest.  These 
advances are secured by blanket pledges of certain 1-4 family residential mortgages totaling $102.7 
million at December 31, 2010.

Also at December 31, 2010, the Corporation had $19.0 million in fixed rate advances that are 
noncallable for one, two or three years and then callable quarterly with final maturities of five, seven 
or ten years from the original date of the advance. All of these advances are beyond their initial 
noncallable periods. These advances are secured by pledges of investment securities totaling $22.2 
million at December 31, 2010.

The advances have prepayment penalties.
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THE SCHEDULED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS AND MATURITIES OF ADVANCES ARE AS FOLLOWS:
(IN THOUSANDS)  
2011 $ 3,446
2012  5,462
2013  218
2014  -
2015  3,000
OVER 5 YEARS  12,000
   TOTAL $ 24,126

At December 31, 2010 and at December 31, 2009 there were no overnight borrowings with the 
FHLB.  At December 31, 2010, unused short-term or overnight borrowing commitments totaled $250.0 
million from the FHLB and $28.0 million from correspondent banks.

9. FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit 
price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date. There are three levels of inputs that may be used 
to measure fair values:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity 
has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for 
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are 
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company’s own assumptions about the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Corporation used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate the fair value:

Investment Securities:  The fair values for investment securities are determined by quoted market 
prices, if available (Level 1). For securities where quoted prices are not available, fair values are calcu-
lated based on market prices of similar securities (Level 2). For securities where quoted prices or 
market prices of similar securities are not available, fair values are calculated using discounted cash 
flows or other market indicators (Level 3). Discounted cash flows are calculated using spread to swap 
and LIBOR curves that are updated to incorporate loss severities, volatility, credit spread and option-
ality. During times when trading is more liquid, broker quotes are used, if available, to validate the 
model. Rating agency and industry research reports as well as defaults and deferrals on individual 
securities are reviewed and incorporated into the calculations.

Impaired Loans:  The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowance for 
loan losses is generally based on recent real estate appraisals. These appraisals may utilize a single 
valuation approach or a combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income 
approach. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to 
adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments are 
usually significant and typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair 
value.

Other Real Estate Owned:  Nonrecurring adjustments to certain commercial and residential real 
estate properties classified as other real estate owned (OREO) are measured at fair value, less costs to 
sell. Fair values are based on recent real estate appraisals. These appraisals may use a single valuation 
approach or a combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income approach. 
Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust for 
differences between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments are usually 
significant and typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value.
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE SUMMARIZES, FOR THE PERIODS INDICATED, ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS, 
INCLUDING FINANCIAL ASSETS FOR WHICH THE CORPORATION HAS ELECTED THE FAIR VALUE OPTION:

 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING 
    QUOTED     
    PRICES IN    
    ACTIVE    
    MARKETS   SIGNIFICANT  
    FOR  OTHER  SIGNIFICANT

    IDENTICAL  OBSERVABLE  UNOBSERVABLE

    ASSETS  INPUTS  INPUTS

(IN THOUSANDS)   DECEMBER 31, 2010  (LEVEL 1)  (LEVEL 2)  (LEVEL 3)
ASSETS:        
   U.S. TREASURY AND U.S. GOVERNMENT- 
      SPONSORED ENTITIES $ 51,135 $ - $ 51,135 $ -
   MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL  202,090  -  202,090  -
   STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS  16,613  -  16,613  -
   OTHER SECURITIES  3,001  -  3,001  -
   CRA INVESTMENT FUND  1,499  -  1,499  -
   MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES  738  738  -  -
TOTAL $ 275,076 $ 738 $ 274,338 $ -

(IN THOUSANDS)   DECEMBER 31, 2009      
ASSETS:        
   U.S. GOVERNMENT-SPONSORED ENTITIES $ 129,984 $ - $ 129,984 $ -
   MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES - RESIDENTIAL    117,4644    117,464  -
   STATE AND POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS  19,073  -  19,073  -
   OTHER SECURITIES  3,046  -  3,046  -
   MARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES  2,917  2,917  -  -
TOTAL $ 272,484 $ 2,917 $ 269,567 $ -
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE SUMMARIZES, FOR THE PERIODS INDICATED, ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON A NON-RECURRING BASIS:
 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS USING 
    Q UOTED     
    PRICES IN    
    ACTIVE    
    MARKETS   SIGNIFICANT  
    FOR  OTHER  SIGNIFICANT

    IDENTICAL  OBSERVABLE  UNOBSERVABLE

    ASSETS  INPUTS  INPUTS

(IN THOUSANDS)  DECEMBER 31, 2010  (LEVEL 1)  (LEVEL 2)  (LEVEL 3)
ASSETS:        
   IMPAIRED LOANS:        
     COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE $ 10,452  -  - $ 10,452
     COMMERCIAL  3,346  -  -  3,346

 (IN THOUSANDS)  DECEMBER 31, 2009    
ASSETS:        
   IMPAIRED LOANS:        
     COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE $ 6,258  -  - $ 6,258
     COMMERCIAL  2,743  -  -  2,743
  OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED:        
     COMMERCIAL  360  -  -  360

Impaired loans that are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral for collateral 
dependent loans, had a recorded investment of $28.4 million, with a valuation allowance of $2.5 million 
at December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2009, impaired loans had a principal balance of $46.8 million 
with a valuation allowance of $2.1 million.

THE CARRYING AMOUNTS AND ESTIMATED FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009 ARE AS 
FOLLOWS:
 DECEMBER 31, 2010 DECEMBER 31, 2009
  CARRYING  FAIR  CARRYING  FAIR

(IN THOUSANDS)  AMOUNT  VALUE  AMOUNT  VALUE

FINANCIAL ASSETS:        
  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 62,687 $ 62,687 $ 79,972 $ 79,972
  INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY  140,277  138,438  89,459  87,827
  INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  275,076  275,076  272,484  272,484
  FHLB AND FRB STOCK  4,624  N/A  5,315  N/A
  LOANS, NET OF ALLOWANCE FOR        
     LOAN LOSSES  918,215  917,257  970,345  974,143
  ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE  4,231  4,231  4,444  4,444
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
  DEPOSITS  1,351,546  1,353,834  1,349,669  1,351,549
  FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES  24,126  25,330  36,499  37,729
  ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE  716  716  1,447  1,447
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The methods and assumptions, not previously presented, used to estimate fair value are described as 
follows:

The carrying amount is the estimated fair value for cash and cash equivalents, interest-earning 
deposits, accrued interest receivable and payable, demand deposits, short-term debt, and variable-rate 
loans or deposits that reprice frequently and fully. For fixed-rate loans or deposits and for variable-rate 
loans or deposits with infrequent repricing or repricing limits, fair value is based on discounted cash 
flows using current market rates applied to the estimated life and credit risk, including consideration of 
credit spreads. Fair value of debt is based on current rates for similar financing. It was not practicable 
to determine the fair value of FHLB or FRB stock due to restrictions placed on its transferability. The 
fair value of off-balance sheet items is not considered material or is based on the current fees or cost 
that would be charged to enter into or terminate such arrangements.

10.  INCOME TAXES

THE INCOME TAX EXPENSE INCLUDED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, IS 
ALLOCATED AS FOLLOWS:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
FEDERAL:      
  CURRENT EXPENSE $ 4,752 $ 3,447 $ 6,303
  DEFERRED (BENEFIT)  (1,874)  (674)  (19,374)
STATE:      
  CURRENT EXPENSE  627  146  726
  DEFERRED (BENEFIT)  (306)  (209)  (2,851)
  VALUATION ALLOWANCE  32  344  2,610
     TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT) $ 3,231 $ 3,054 $ (12,586)

TOTAL INCOME TAX EXPENSE DIFFERED FROM THE AMOUNTS COMPUTED BY APPLYING THE U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX RATE OF 35 
PERCENT TO INCOME BEFORE TAXES AS A RESULT OF THE FOLLOWING:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
COMPUTED “EXPECTED” TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT) $ 3,813 $ 3,563 $ (12,126)
(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN TAXES RESULTING FROM:      
  TAX-EXEMPT INCOME  (386)  (580)  (569)
  STATE INCOME TAXES  229  (21)  315
  BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE INCOME  (225)  (223)  (299)
  INTEREST DISALLOWANCE  33  66  -
  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION  61  94  -
  RATE ADJUSTMENT  (100)  (100)  -
  OTHER  (194)  255  93  
     TOTAL INCOME TAX  EXPENSE/(BENEFIT) $ 3,231 $ 3,054 $ (12,586) 
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THE TAX EFFECTS OF TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES THAT GIVE RISE TO SIGNIFICANT PORTIONS OF THE DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES AS OF DECEMBER 31 ARE AS FOLLOWS:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS:     
  ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES $ 5,834 $ 5,367
  UNREALIZED LOSS ON SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  -  -
  STATE NET OPERATING LOSS CARRY FORWARD  1,071  1,360
  LEASE ADJUSTMENT  180  227
  POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS  238  232
  PREPAID ALTERNATIVE MINIMUM ASSESSMENT  283  283
  CONTRIBUTION LIMITATION  58  58
  OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY IMPAIRMENT  20,940  20,935
  UNREALIZED LOSS ON MARKET ADJUSTMENT ON OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY     
      IMPAIRED SECURITIES  1,905  1,949
  STOCK OPTION EXPENSE  139  64
  NONACCRUED INTEREST  1,698  818
  ACCRUED COMPENSATION  157  56
  VALUATION ALLOWANCE-OTHER-THAN-TEMPORARY IMPAIRMENT STATE TAX  (3,260)  (3,233)
TOTAL GROSS DEFERRED TAX ASSETS $ 29,243 $ 28,116

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:    
  BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT, PRINCIPALLY DUE TO DIFFERENCE IN    
     DEPRECIATION $ 1,474 $ 1,057
  UNREALIZED GAIN ON SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  661  754
  DEFERRED LOAN ORIGINATION COSTS AND FEES  835  859
  DEFERRED REIT DIVIDEND  -  898
  DEFERRED INCOME  404  535
  NONMONETARY GAIN  97  97
  INVESTMENT SECURITIES, PRINCIPALLY DUE TO THE ACCRETION OF BOND    
     DISCOUNT  47  96
  OTHER  -  298
TOTAL GROSS DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES  3,518  4,594

NET DEFERRED TAX ASSET $ 25,725 $ 23,522

The net deferred asset includes the tax effect of $18.3 million of New Jersey net operating loss 
carryforwards that expire from 2012 through 2029.  Management has recorded a valuation reserve 
against the net state tax benefits of $3.3 million related to the security impairment charges.  Losses 
realized upon the ultimate disposition of these securities will likely create additional state tax losses.  
Management does not feel it is more likely than not that the Corporation would be able to utilize the 
losses during the net operating loss carryforward period.

Based upon taxes paid and projected future taxable income, Management believes that it is more 
likely than not that the remaining gross deferred tax assets will be realized.

11.  BENEFIT PLANS

PENSION PLAN:

The Corporation had a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of its salaried 
employees which was discontinued on May 12, 2008.  The Plan was settled and substantially all 
benefits were paid to employees during September 2008.  Contributions totaling $2.1 million were 
made during 2008 and no further contributions are expected.  The Corporation amended its existing 
401(K) profit-sharing and investment plan to enhance the contributions to its salaried employees 
starting in May 2008.
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NET PERIODIC PENSION EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING COMPONENTS:
(IN THOUSANDS)  2008
SERVICE COST $ 637
INTEREST COST  633
EXPECTED RETURN ON PLAN ASSETS  (839)
NET PERIODIC BENEFIT COST  431
AMORTIZATION OF:  
  NET LOSS  17
  TRANSITION ASSET  (3)
TOTAL RECOGNIZED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  14
TOTAL RECOGNIZED IN NET PERIODIC BENEFIT COST AND   
  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 445

SAVINGS AND PROFIT SHARING PLANS:

The Corporation sponsors a profit sharing plan and a savings plan under Section 401(K) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, covering substantially all salaried employees over the age of 21 with at 
least 12 months service.  The savings plan was amended to enhance the contributions to its salaried 
employees starting in May 2008 and replaced the Bank’s defined benefit pension plan which was 
terminated in 2008.  These actions will reduce the retirement costs per employee in future years and 
eliminates the market risk of maintaining a defined benefit plan. Under the savings portion of the plan, 
the Corporation contributes three percent of salary for each employee regardless of the employees’ 
contributions as well as partially matching employee contributions.  In addition, the Corporation is 
contributing an enhanced benefit to employees who were previously in the defined benefit plan.  In 
2010 and 2009, the enhanced benefit was approximately $801 thousand and $964 thousand, respec-
tively.  Expense for the savings plan totaled approximately $1.7 million, $1.8 million and $1.3 million 
in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Contributions to the profit sharing plan are made at the discretion of the Board of Directors and 
all funds are invested solely in Peapack-Gladstone Corporation common stock.  The aggregate contri-
bution to the profit sharing plan was $100 thousand in each of 2010, 2009 and 2008.

12.  STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Corporation’s 2002 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (as amended) and 2006 Long-Term Stock 
Incentive Plan allow the granting of shares of the Corporation’s common stock as incentive stock 
options, nonqualified stock options, restricted stock awards and stock appreciation rights to directors, 
officers, employees and independent contractors of the Corporation and its Subsidiaries. The total 
number initially available to grant in active plans was 775,740 shares. There are no shares remaining 
for issuance with respect to stock option plans approved in 1995 and 1998; however, options granted 
under those plans are still included in the numbers below. At December 31, 2010, there were 285,332 
additional shares available for grant under the unexpired plans.

Options granted under the long-term stock incentive plans are, in general, exercisable not earlier 
than one year after the date of grant, at a price equal to the fair market value of the common stock on 
the date of grant, and expire not more than ten years after the date of grant.  Stock options may vest 
during a period of up to five years after the date of grant.  Some options granted to officers at or above 
the senior vice president level were immediately exercisable at the date of grant.
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CHANGES IN OPTIONS OUTSTANDING DURING 2010 WERE AS FOLLOWS:
   WEIGHTED AGGREGATE

   AVERAGE INTRINSIC

 NUMBER OF EXERCISE PRICE EXERCISE VALUE

 OPTIONS PER SHARE PRICE (IN THOUSANDS)
BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 2010 557,882 $11.91-$31.60 $24.86 
GRANTED DURING 2010 68,400 10.83-15.49 13.39 
EXERCISED DURING 2010 - - - 
FORFEITED DURING 2010 (47,519) 13.03-31.60 21.96 
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010 578,763 $10.83-$31.43 $23.75 $7
VESTED AND EXPECTED TO VEST (1) 566,095 $10.83-$31.43 $23.88 $2
EXERCISABLE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 444,688 $11.91-$31.43 $25.26 $1

(1) THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE SHARES WHICH ARE EXERCISABLE (FULLY VESTED) AND THOSE WHICH ARE EXPECTED TO VEST IS DUE TO 

ANTICIPATED FORFEITURES.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the 
difference between the Corporation’s closing stock price on the last trading day of 2010 and the exercise 
price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options).

There were no options exercised during 2010.  The aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised 
during 2009 and 2008 was $230 thousand and $428 thousand, respectively.

THE FOLLOWING TABLE SUMMARIZES INFORMATION ABOUT STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANDING AT DECEMBER 31, 2010:
 OPTIONS REMAINING OPTIONS

EXERCISE PRICE OUTSTANDING CONTRACTUAL LIFE EXERCISABLE

<15.00 98,710 6.5 YEARS 29,574
15.01-25.00 112,649 4.3 YEARS 72,709
25.01-27.50 67,582 5.6 YEARS 45,250
27.51-32.00 299,822 2.9 YEARS 297,155
$23.75 * 578,763 4.1 YEARS 444,688

*  WEIGHTED AVERAGE EXERCISE PRICE   

The per share weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during 2010, 2009 and 2008 
was $8.31, $7.33 and $10.94, respectively, on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model with the following weighted average assumptions:

 2010 2009 2008
DIVIDEND YIELD 1.30% 2.05% 2.40%
EXPECTED VOLATILITY 72% 50% 50%
EXPECTED LIFE 7 YEARS 7 YEARS 7 YEARS

RISK-FREE INTEREST RATE 2.91% 2.57% 3.80%

For 2010, 2009 and 2008, the expected life of the option is the typical holding period of the 
Corporation’s options before being exercised by the optionee.  The risk-free interest rate is the rate on a 
seven-year treasury bond for 2010, 2009 and 2008.  The volatility, or beta, is the performance the stock 
has experienced in the last five years.

As of December 31, 2010, there was approximately $834 thousand of unrecognized compensation 
cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Corporation’s stock 
incentive plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.7 years.

In 2010, the Corporation issued 55,993 restricted stock awards at a fair value equal to the market 
price of the Corporation’s common stock at the date of grant. The awards fully vest on the fifth 
anniversary of the grant date. As of December 31, 2010, there was $602 thousand of total unrecog-
nized compensation cost related to nonvested shares. There was no vesting of restricted stock awards 
during 2010. 
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Corporation, in the ordinary course of business, is a party to litigation arising from the conduct 
of its business.  Management does not consider that these actions depart from routine legal proceedings 
and believes that such actions will not affect its financial position or results of its operations in any 
material manner.  There are various outstanding commitments and contingencies, such as guarantees 
and credit extensions, including mostly variable-rate loan commitments of $108.7 million and $130.5 
million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, which are not included in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements.  These commitments include unused commercial and home equity 
lines of credit.

The Corporation issues financial standby letters of credit that are irrevocable undertakings by 
the Corporation to guarantee payment of a specified financial obligation.  Most of the Corporation’s 
financial standby letters of credit arise in connection with lending relations and have terms of one year 
or less.  The maximum potential future payments the Corporation could be required to make equals 
the contract amount of the standby letters of credit and amounted to $7.5 million and $8.6 million at 
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.  The fair value of the Corporation’s liability for financial 
standby letters of credit was insignificant at December 31, 2010.

For commitments to originate loans, the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 
by the contractual amount of those instruments.  Those commitments represent ultimate exposure to credit 
risk only to the extent that they are subsequently drawn upon by customers.  The Corporation uses the 
same credit policies and underwriting standards in making loan commitments as it does for on-balance-
sheet instruments.  For loan commitments, the Corporation would generally be exposed to interest rate 
risk from the time a commitment is issued with a defined contractual interest rate.

At December 31, 2010, the Corporation was obligated under non-cancelable operating leases for 
certain premises.  Rental expense aggregated $2.6 million, $2.8 million and $2.7 million for the years 
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is included in premises and equipment 
expense in the consolidated statements of income. 

THE MINIMUM ANNUAL LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER THE TERMS OF THE OPERATING LEASE AGREEMENTS, AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010, 
WERE AS FOLLOWS: 
(IN THOUSANDS)  
2011 $ 2,203
2012  2,148
2013  2,162
2014  1,938
2015  1,950
THEREAFTER   9,814
     TOTAL $ 20,215
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In the Summer of 2010, the Corporation relocated its administrative offices under a capital lease. 
THE FOLLOWING IS A SCHEDULE BY YEAR OF FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER THE CAPITALIZED LEASE, TOGETHER WITH 
THE PRESENT VALUE OF NET MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010.
(IN THOUSANDS)  
2011 $ 258
2012  443
2013  443
2014  524
2015  565
THEREAFTER  7,230
    TOTAL MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS  9,463
    LESS: AMOUNT REPRESENTING INTEREST  3,159
       PRESENT VALUE OF NET MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS $ 6,304

The Corporation is also obligated under legally binding and enforceable agreements to purchase 
goods and services from third parties, including data processing service agreements.

14.  REGULATORY CAPITAL

The Corporation through the Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements admin-
istered by the Federal banking agencies.  Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate 
certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could 
have a direct material effect on the Corporation and the Bank’s consolidated financial statements. If 
adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits.  If undercapitalized, 
capital distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital restoration plans are 
required.  

Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the 
Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, 
liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices.  
The Corporation’s and the Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative 
judgments by the regulators about components, risk weighting and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios of Total and Tier I capital (as defined in the regulations) to 
risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). At 
year-end 2010 and 2009, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the Bank as well capi-
talized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  There are no conditions or events 
since that notification that Management believes have changed the institution’s category. Management 
also believes the Corporation is well capitalized when compared to the Bank’s capital requirements.

To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-
based and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table.
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THE BANK’S ACTUAL CAPITAL AMOUNTS AND RATIOS ARE PRESENTED IN THE FOLLOWING TABLE.
  TO BE WELL 
  CAPITALIZED UNDER FOR CAPITAL

  PROMPT CORRECTIVE ADEQUACY

 ACTUAL ACTION PROVISIONS PURPOSES

(IN THOUSANDS)  AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010:           
  TOTAL CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS) $ 124,653 13.54 % $ 92,092 10.00 % $ 73,674 8.00 %
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS)  113,108 12.28   55,255 6.00   36,837 4.00 
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO AVERAGE ASSETS)  113,108 7.57   74,751 5.00   44,851 4.00 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009:            
  TOTAL CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS) $ 125,552 12.99 % $ 96,618 10.00 % $ 77,294 8.00 %
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS)  113,461 11.74   57,971 6.00   38,647 4.00 
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO AVERAGE ASSETS)  113,461 7.46   76,025 5.00   45,615 4.00 

THE CORPORATION’S ACTUAL CAPITAL AMOUNTS AND RATIOS ARE PRESENTED IN THE FOLLOWING TABLE.
  TO BE WELL 
  CAPITALIZED UNDER FOR CAPITAL

  PROMPT CORRECTIVE ADEQUACY

 ACTUAL ACTION PROVISIONS PURPOSES

(IN THOUSANDS)  AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO AMOUNT RATIO

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010: 
  TOTAL CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS) $ 130,695 14.16 %  N/A N/A  $ 73,831 8.00 %
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS)  119,125 12.91   N/A N/A   36,915 4.00 
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO AVERAGE ASSETS)  119,125 7.96   N/A N/A   44,903 4.00 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009:            
  TOTAL CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS) $ 133,040 13.71 %  N/A N/A  $ 74,188 8.00 %
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS)  120,893 12.45   N/A N/A   37,094 4.00 
  TIER I CAPITAL            
    (TO AVERAGE ASSETS)  120,893 7.93   N/A N/A   44,903 4.00 

As fully described in Footnote 15, Preferred Stock, the Corporation redeemed a portion of the 
preferred shares issued under the Treasury’s Capital Purchase Program, repaying $7.2 million on March 
2, 2011. In association with this repayment, the Bank paid a $5.5 million dividend to the Corporation 
on March 1, 2011.
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15.  PREFERRED STOCK

On January 9, 2009, as part of the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “Treasury”) Troubled 
Asset Relief Program (“TARP”) Capital Purchase Program, the Corporation sold 28,685 shares of the 
Corporation’s Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, Series A, having a liquidation pref-
erence of $1,000 per share, and a ten-year warrant to purchase up to 150,296 shares of the Corporation’s 
common stock, no par value at an exercise price of $28.63 per share, after adjusting for the five percent 
stock dividend declared on June 18, 2009, for an aggregate purchase price of $28.7 million in cash, 
allocated $1.6 million to warrants and $27.1 million to preferred stock.

Cumulative dividends on the preferred shares will accrue on the liquidation preference at a rate of 5 
percent per annum for the first five years, and at a rate of 9 percent per annum thereafter.  Subject to the 
approval of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, the preferred shares are redeemable 
at the option of the Corporation at 100 percent of their liquidation preference.  If the Corporation 
redeems the preferred shares and the Treasury still owns the warrant, the Corporation could repurchase 
the warrant from the Treasury for its fair market value.  Unless both the holder and the Corporation 
agree otherwise, the exercise of the warrant will be a net exercise (i.e., the holder does not pay cash but 
gives up shares with a market value at the time of exercise equal to the exercise price, resulting in a net 
settlement with significantly fewer than the 150,296 shares of common stock being issued).

The Securities Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which the preferred shares and the warrant were 
sold, contains limitations on the payment of dividends on the common stock, including with respect to 
the payment of quarterly cash dividends in excess of $0.16 per share, which was the amount of the last 
regular dividend declared by the Corporation prior to October 14, 2008 and on the Corporation’s ability 
to repurchase its Common Stock.  The Corporation is also subject to certain executive compensation 
limitations included in the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the “EESA”).

On January 6, 2010, the Corporation redeemed 25 percent of the preferred shares issued under the 
Treasury’s CPP, repaying approximately $7.2 million to the Treasury, including accrued and unpaid 
dividends of approximately $51 thousand. The Corporation’s redemption of the shares was not subject 
to additional conditions or stipulations from the Treasury.  As a result of the repurchase, the accretion 
related to the preferred stock was accelerated and approximately $330 thousand was recorded as a 
reduction to retained earnings in the first quarter of 2010.  

On March 2, 2011, the Corporation redeemed an additional 25 percent of the original preferred 
shares issued under the Treasury’s CPP, repaying approximately $7.2 million to the Treasury, including 
accrued and unpaid dividends of approximately $15 thousand. The Corporation’s redemption of the 
shares was not subject to additional conditions or stipulations from the Treasury.  As a result of the 
repurchase, the accretion related to the preferred stock was accelerated and approximately $246 
thousand was recorded as a reduction to retained earnings in the first quarter of 2011.  
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16.  BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Corporation assesses its results among two operating segments, Banking and PGB Trust and 
Investments.  Management uses certain methodologies to allocate income and expense to the business 
segments.  A funds transfer pricing methodology is used to assign interest income and interest expense.  
Certain indirect expenses are allocated to segments.  These include support unit expenses such as tech-
nology and operations and other support functions.  Taxes are allocated to each segment based on the 
effective rate for the period shown.

BANKING

The Banking segment includes commercial, commercial real estate, residential and consumer 
lending activities; deposit generation; operation of ATMs; telephone and internet banking services; 
merchant credit card services and customer support and sales.

PGB TRUST & INVESTMENTS

PGB Trust & Investments includes asset management services provided for individuals and insti-
tutions; personal trust services, including services as executor, trustee, administrator, custodian and 
guardian, corporate trust services including services as trustee for pension and profit sharing plans; 
and other financial planning and advisory services.
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THE FOLLOWING TABLE PRESENTS THE STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND TOTAL ASSETS FOR THE CORPORATION’S REPORTABLE SEGMENTS 
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008.
 TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
     PGB TRUST 
(IN THOUSANDS)    BANKING & INVESTMENTS TOTAL

NET INTEREST INCOME $ 46,291 $ 3,599 $ 49,890
NONINTEREST INCOME  4,076  10,039  14,115
   TOTAL INCOME  50,367  13,638  64,005
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  10,000  -  10,000
SALARIES AND BENEFITS  17,570  4,959  22,529
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  8,861  763  9,624
OTHER NONINTEREST EXPENSE  6,984  3,973  10,957
   TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSE  43,415  9,695  53,110
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  6,952  3,943  10,895
INCOME TAX EXPENSE  2,060  1,171  3,231
   NET INCOME $ 4,892 $ 2,772 $ 7,664

TOTAL ASSETS AT PERIOD END $ 1,504,098 $ 1,327 $ 1,505,425

 TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009
     PGB TRUST 
(IN THOUSANDS)    BANKING & INVESTMENTS TOTAL

NET INTEREST INCOME $ 44,622 $ 3,726 $ 48,348
NONINTEREST INCOME  4,202  9,596  13,798
   TOTAL INCOME  48,824  13,322  62,146
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  9,700  -  9,700
SALARIES AND BENEFITS  17,051  4,826  21,877
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  8,042  761  8,803
OTHER NONINTEREST EXPENSE  8,207  3,379  11,586
   TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSE  43,000  8,966  51,966
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  5,824  4,356  10,180
INCOME TAX EXPENSE  1,747  1,307  3,054
   NET INCOME $ 4,077 $ 3,049 $ 7,126

TOTAL ASSETS AT PERIOD END $ 1,510,615 $ 1,738 $ 1,512,353

 TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
     PGB TRUST 
(IN THOUSANDS)    BANKING & INVESTMENTS TOTAL

NET INTEREST INCOME $ 43,198 $ 3,122 $ 46,320
NONINTEREST (LOSS)/INCOME  (51,995)  10,714  (41,281)
   TOTAL (LOSS)/INCOME  (8,797)  13,836  5,039
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES  2,400  -  2,400
SALARIES AND BENEFITS  15,994  4,592  20,586
PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT EXPENSE  7,703  767  8,470
OTHER NONINTEREST EXPENSE  5,630  2,599  8,229
   TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSE  31,727  7,958  39,685
(LOSS)/INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE  (40,524)  5,878  (34,646)
INCOME TAX (BENEFIT)/EXPENSE  (14,517)  1,931  (12,586)
   NET (LOSS)/INCOME $ (26,007) $ 3,947 $ (22,060)

TOTAL ASSETS AT PERIOD END $ 1,384,036 $ 1,389 $ 1,385,425
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17. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PEAPACK-GLADSTONE FINANCIAL 
CORPORATION (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION OF THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

STATEMENTS OF CONDITION 
 DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009
ASSETS    
CASH $ 283 $ 1,102
INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS  3,526  1,632
   TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  3,809  2,734
SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  1,648  3,917
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY  111,719  112,315
OTHER ASSETS  599  654
  TOTAL ASSETS $ 117,775 $ 119,620

LIABILITIES    
OTHER LIABILITIES $ 59 $ 111
   TOTAL LIABILITIES  59  111
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
PREFERRED STOCK  20,746  27,359
COMMON STOCK  7,650  9,194
SURPLUS  95,586  93,420
TREASURY STOCK  (8,988)  (8,988)
RETAINED EARNINGS  4,693  471
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE    
  LOSS, NET OF INCOME TAX BENEFIT  (1,971)  (1,947)
   TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY  117,716  119,509
   TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 117,775 $ 119,620

STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
INCOME      
DIVIDEND FROM BANK $ 8,663 $ - $ 2,000
OTHER INCOME  166  309  666
IMPAIRMENT CHARGES ON SECURITIES  (360)  -  (884)
SECURITIES (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET  (19)  67  166
  TOTAL INCOME  8,450  376  1,948

EXPENSES      
OTHER EXPENSES  74  73  97
  TOTAL EXPENSES  74  73  97
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND      
  EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED EARNINGS OF BANK  8,376  303  1,851
INCOME TAX (BENEFIT)/EXPENSE  (124)  68  (53)
NET INCOME BEFORE EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED EARNINGS OF BANK  8,500  235  1,904
(DIVIDENDS IN EXCESS OF EARNINGS)/EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED  
   EARNINGS OF BANK  (836)  6,891  (23,964)
  NET INCOME/(LOSS) $ 7,664 $ 7,126 $ (22,060)
DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK AND ACCRETION  1,686  1,493  -
  NET INCOME/(LOSS) AVAILABLE TO COMMON SHAREHOLDERS $ 5,978 $ 5,633 $ (22,060)
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,
(IN THOUSANDS)  2010  2009  2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:      
NET INCOME/(LOSS) $ 7,664 $ 7,126 $ (22,060)
EQUITY IN UNDISTRIBUTED LOSS/(EARNINGS)  836  (6,891)  23,964
LOSS/(GAIN) ON SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  379  (67)  718
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN OTHER ASSETS  (74)  (145)  342
(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN OTHER LIABILITIES  (52)  (85)  (77)
  NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES  8,753  (62)  2,887

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:      
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION TO SUBSIDIARY  -  (23,000)  (12,500)
PROCEEDS FROM SALES AND CALLS OF SECURITIES      
  AVAILABLE FOR SALE  2,237  1,160  5,937
PURCHASE OF SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE  -  -  (1,439)
  NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES  2,237  (21,840)  (8,002)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:      
GROSS PROCEEDS FROM PREFERRED STOCK AND WARRANT  -  28,685  -
COSTS RELATED TO ISSUANCE OF PREFERRED STOCK  -  (112)  -
REDEMPTION OF PREFERRED STOCK  (7,172)  -  -
CASH DIVIDENDS PAID ON PREFERRED STOCK  (1,126)  (1,219)  -
CASH DIVIDENDS PAID ON COMMON STOCK  (1,757)  (3,524)  (5,307)
TAX BENEFIT ON STOCK OPTION EXERCISES  -  292  289
EXERCISE OF STOCK OPTIONS  -  1,108  902
ISSUANCE OF COMMON SHARES (DRIP PROGRAM)  140  106  -
TREASURY STOCK TRANSACTIONS  -  (1,094)  (1,639)
  NET CASH (USED IN)/PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (9,915)  24,242  (5,755)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  1,075  2,340  (10,870)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD  2,734  394  11,264
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 3,809 $ 2,734 $ 394
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 PLUCKEMIN, NJ
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OFFICES 
CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS (T) 
500 HILLS DRIVE, BEDMINSTER, NJ 07921 
WWW.PGBANK.COM       (908) 234-0700
BERNARDSVILLE 
36 MORRISTOWN ROAD, BERNARDSVILLE, NJ 07924 (908) 766-1711
BRIDGEWATER 
619 EAST MAIN STREET, BRIDGEWATER, NJ 08807 (908) 429-9988
CALIFON 
438 ROUTE 513, CALIFON, NJ 07830  (908) 832-5131
CHATHAM 
311 MAIN STREET, CHATHAM, NJ 07928 (973) 635-8500
CHESTER 
350 MAIN STREET, CHESTER, NJ 07930 (908) 879-8115
CHUBB CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS 
15 MOUNTAIN VIEW ROAD, WARREN, NJ 07059 (908) 903-2597
CLINTON (T) 
189 CENTER STREET, CLINTON, NJ 08809 (908) 238-1935
FAR HILLS 
26 DUMONT ROAD, FAR HILLS, NJ 07931 (908) 781-1018
FELLOWSHIP VILLAGE 
8000 FELLOWSHIP ROAD, BASKING RIDGE, NJ 07920 (908) 719-4332
GLADSTONE (MAIN OFFICE) (T) 
190 MAIN STREET, GLADSTONE, NJ 07934 (908) 719-4360
GREEN VILLAGE ROAD 
278 GREEN VILLAGE ROAD, GREEN VILLAGE, NJ 07935 (973) 377-0081
HILLSBOROUGH 
417 ROUTE 206 NORTH, HILLSBOROUGH, NJ 08844 (908) 281-1031
LONG VALLEY 
59 EAST MILL ROAD, LONG VALLEY, NJ 07853 (908) 876-3300
MENDHAM 
17 EAST MAIN STREET, MENDHAM, NJ 07945 (973) 543-6499
MORRISTOWN (T) 
233 SOUTH STREET, MORRISTOWN, NJ 07960 (973) 455-1118
OLDWICK 
169 LAMINGTON ROAD, OLDWICK, NJ 08858 (908) 439-2320
PISCATAWAY 
1038 STELTON ROAD, PISCATAWAY, NJ 08854 (732) 562-8799
PLUCKEMIN 
468 ROUTE 202/206 NORTH, BEDMINSTER, NJ 07921 (908) 658-4500
POTTERSVILLE 
11 POTTERSVILLE ROAD, POTTERSVILLE, NJ 07979 (908) 439-2265
SUMMIT – DEFOREST (T) 
48 DEFOREST AVENUE, SUMMIT, NJ 07901 (908) 273-2890
SUMMIT – SHORT HILLS  
 54 MORRIS & ESSEX TURNPIKE, SUMMIT, NJ 07901       (973) 467-8900
WARREN 
58 MOUNTAIN BOULEVARD, WARREN, NJ 07059 (908) 757-2805
WHITEHOUSE 
531 US HIGHWAY 22 EAST, WHITEHOUSE STATION, NJ 08889 (908) 534-5590
BETHLEHEM (T) 
ONE BETHLEHEM PLAZA, SUITE 410, BETHLEHEM, PA 18018 (610) 861-4030
(T) DENOTES PGB TRUST & INVESTMENTS OFFICE 
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

CORPORATE ADDRESS

500 HILLS DRIVE

BEDMINSTER, NJ 07921
(908) 234–0700
WWW.PGBANK.COM

STOCK LISTING

PEAPACK-GLADSTONE FINANCIAL CORPORATION COMMON STOCK IS TRADED ON THE

NASDAQ GLOBAL SELECT MARKET UNDER THE SYMBOL PGC AND REPORTED IN THE WALL STREET JOURNAL 
AND MOST MAJOR NEWSPAPERS.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

CROWE HORWATH LLP
345 EISENHOWER PARKWAY, PLAZA 1
LIVINGSTON, NEW JERSEY 07039-1027

TRANSFER AGENT

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER COMPANY

10 COMMERCE DRIVE

CRANFORD, NEW JERSEY 07016-3572
(800) 368-5948

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

JEFFREY J. CARFORA, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

(908) 719-4308
JCARFORA@PGBANK.COM

ANNUAL MEETING

THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF PEAPACK-GLADSTONE FINANCIAL CORPORATION

WILL BE HELD ON APRIL 26, 2011 AT 2:00 P.M. AT THE FIDDLER’S ELBOW COUNTRY CLUB IN
BEDMINSTER, NEW JERSEY.


